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Notice of Seventh Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of VIZAG
GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED will be held on Thursday, the 24" day of August, 2017
at 10.00 AM at SIPCOT Industrial Complex, Madurai By Pass Road, Tuticorin - 628002 to transact
the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and the Profit &
Loss Account for the year ended as on that date and the Report of the Directors and Auditors
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Pooja Yadava, who retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To ratify the appointment Statutory Auditors M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, (Registration No. 301003E/E300005) and in this regard to consider and if thought
fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and all other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Company
hereby ratifies the appointment of M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants,
(Registration No. 301003E/E300005), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting on such remuneration as shall be agreed upon between the Board of Directors
and the Auditors.”

Special Business

4. Payment of Remuneration to Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the Cost Auditors
for the Company, Mr. Uppalapati Prakash, appointed by the Board on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company
for the financial year ending March 31, 2018, be paid the remuneration of Rs.70,000/- per
annum plus Service Tax and out of pocket expenses at actuals.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or the Company Secretary, be
and are hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”



5. Appointment of MR. G R Arun Kumar as a Non-Executive Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. G R Arun Kumar (DIN 01874769) who was appointed a Director of the
Company with effect from 20th October 2016 and who, in terms of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and who is
eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice, in writing,
from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 signifying his intention to
propose Mr. G R Arun Kumar as a candidate for the office of Director of the Company, be and is
hereby appointed a Director of the Company."

6. Appointment of MR. Kishore Kumar Rajagopal as a Non-Executive Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Kishore Kumar Rajagopal (DIN 07148888) who was appointed a Director
of the Company with effect from 27th April, 2017 and who, in terms of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and who is
eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice, in writing,
from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 signifying his intention to
propose Mr. Kishore Kumar Rajagopal as a candidate for the office of Director of the Company,
be and is hereby appointed a Director of the Company."

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 27, 2017

NOTES:

a) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member. A blank proxy form is enclosed, which
if used, should be deposited with the Company duly executed before the commencement of the
Annual General Meeting.

b) Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting are
requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

c) Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are open for
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except
Saturdays, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

d) The Register of Directors’ and key managerial personnel shareholding will be available for inspection
by the members at the AGM.



ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
ITEM NO. 4

The Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment
and remuneration of the Cost Mr. Uppalapati Prakash as a cost auditor, to conduct the
audit of the cost records of the Company related to Mining for the financial year ending
March 31, 2018 on remuneration of Rs.70,000/-.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified
by the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for
passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for ratification of the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2018.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in
any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out above.

The Board commends passing of the resolution.
ITEM NO. 5

Mr. G R Arun Kumar was appointed as a Director of the Company w.e.f 20th October 2016 .
A notice, in writing, under section 160 of The Companies Act 2013 has been received from a
member of the Company signifying his intention to propose Mr. G R Arun Kumar as a
candidate for the office of the Director. Mr. G R Arun Kumar’s profile is given in the section
‘Profile of Director being appointed’ annexed to the notice.

The Board of Directors therefore recommends that the resolution set out at item no. 5 of
the notice convening the meeting be approved and passed.

Except Mr. G R Arun Kumar, none of the Directors or their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested in the passing of the resolution set out at item no. 5 of the notice.

ITEM NO. 6

Mr. Kishore Kumar Rajagopal was appointed as a Director of the Company w.e.f 27" April
2017 . A notice, in writing, under section 160 of The Companies Act 2013 has been received
from a member of the Company signifying his intention to propose Mr. Kishore Kumar
Rajagopal as a candidate for the office of the Director. Mr. Kishore Kumar Rajagopal profile
is given in the section ‘Profile of Director being appointed’ annexed to the notice.

The Board of Directors therefore recommends that the resolution set out at item no. 6 of
the notice convening the meeting be approved and passed.

Except Mr. Kishore Kumar Rajagopal, none of the Directors or their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested in the passing of the resolution set out at item no. 6 of the notice.



Annexure |

Details in respect of Directors being appointed

Name of the Director

Mr. G R Arun Kumar (01874769)

Mr. Kishore Kumar Rajagopal

Date of Birth

29/06/1971

22/09/1962

Qualification

B. Com (Hons) Loyola University,
Member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India

Bachelor of Commerce from
Kolkata University and is a
member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India

Specialised Expertise

Mr. Kumar has nearly 21 years of
experience in Finance

Mr. Kumar has 14 years of
experience in the group

No. of shares held in the
Company

Nil

Nil

Directorship in Companies

Listed / Unlisted Public Companies
e Vedanta Limited
e  Sesa Resources limited
e Sesa Mining Corporation
Limited
e  Sterlite Ports Limited

Private Companies / Sec 8
Companies
e Vizag General Cargo Berth
Private Limited

Listed / Unlisted Public
Companies
e Sesa Resources limited
e Sesa Mining
Corporation Limited

Private Companies / Sec 8
Companies
e Vizag General Cargo
Berth Private Limited
e  Sesa Community

e  Sesa Community Development
Development Foundation

e  Foundation e  Goa Sea Port Private

e  Maritime Ventures Private Limited
Limited

e Goa Sea Port Private
Limited

Committee Positions Member Member

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee (CSR Committee)
e  Sesa Resources limited
e Sesa Mining Corporation
Limited
Audit Committee
e Sesa Mining Corporation
Limited
e  Sesa Resources limited
e Vizag General Cargo Berth
Private Limited
Nomination & Remuneration
Committee
e Sesa Mining Corporation
Limited
e Vizag General Cargo Berth
Private Limited

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee
® Sesa Resources
Limited




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd. Office: SIPCOT Industrial Complex, Madurai By Pass Road,
TV Puram P.O., Tuticorin (Tamilnadu)-628002

PROXY FORM
Member’s Folio No. ...............
IV e e et e sbe e et eete e ebe e eebeeebeeabeeeaeeeatbeeateeeeteenateeeten of
............................................................ in the district of .......c.cccceeceevciieiieniieenneennee... being @ member of VIZAG
GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED, hereby appoint ... of
......................................................................... or failing him/her ....ccccooeeviiiiieiccieceeceese s, OF

.................................................... as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the SEVENTH
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on Thursday, 24" day of August, 2017 at 10.00AM. at
the Registered Office of the Company at SIPCOT Industrial Complex, Madurai By Pass Road, TV Puram P.O.,
Tuticorin (Tamilnadu)-628002 and at every adjournment thereof.

Signed this .....cooceevieiiiieniiecieee day of eoeeveeiiiiieee, 2017

Proxy form must reach the Company’s Regd. Office, at Affix Rs.A
SIPCOT Industrial Complex, Madurai By Pass Road, TV
Puram P.O., Tuticorin (Tamilnadu)-628002, not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Revenue
Stamp

Signature



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
BOARD REPORT

To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Seventh Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with prewous vear’s figures
are given hereunder;

. _ _ fs. In Crores
Particulars | 20162017 2015-2016
Gross Income _ | 107.67 17247
| Profit Before interest and Depreciation _ ' 21.47 12.07
Finance Charges _ 3252 29.97
Provision for Depreciation ' ' _ 521 2487 |
| Net Profit Before Tax ' o {36.26) ) 17.14
Provision for Tax o . 9.27. . 16.09
Net Profit After Tax e (45.33) 1.01
Balance of Prpﬁt brought forward 89 23 : 88.22
Balance available for appropriation _ 43. 90 89.23
Proposed Dividend on Eguity Shares : - -
Tax on proposed Dividend | - . -
Transfer to General Reserve : ' - ' ]
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet S 43.90 89.23

Note: M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Selfs, Chartered Accountants, were gppointed for audit of Special purpose Comparative ind
AS financial statements os at and for the year ended March 31, 2016 in terms of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standerds) Rules, 2015, the obligation to comply with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS). Accordingly, the audited

Jinancial statements for the yeor ending March 2016 were prepared and approved by the Boord.

2. REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PRO_SPECTS - Management Discussion and
Analysis '

‘Indian Economy and Infrastructure sector — “2016-17”

In 2016-17, India emerged as one of the largest economies with a promlsmg economic outlook on
the back of controlled inflation, rise in domestic demand, increase in investments, decline in oil
prices.and refgorms among other, indian economy signalied the recovery mode by clocking growth
rate of 7.60% in 2016-17.

Further, it is estimated that the potential Indian economy growlh is forecasted at 7.5% to 8%,
benefiting from the acceleration of infrastructure projects, strong consumer spending due to lower
inflation and stable government’s reform measures.




A key driver of the economy, Infrastructure is highly responsible for propelling India’s overail
development. This sector includes power, bridges, dams, roads, airports, ports and urban
infrastructure development amongst others.

Government of India’s new initiatives, viz., proposed smart cities, enhanced metro raif connectivity,
river linking, focus on non-renewable power with more emphasis on sclar power, efforts to restart
the stalled projects shall optimistically lead to speedy progress and development of Infra sector
which is directly related to the growth of Indian Economy.

Port Sector in India and Andhra Pradesh

Ports in India play a vital role in the economic development of the country and definitely forms an
important component of Public Infrastructure. The same has been reinstated by Gol by including it in
the Core Sectors for achieving its ambitious MAKE IN INDIA programme. Ports offer tremendous
potential for development and growth. of a wide spectrum of maritime activities such as
international shipping, coastal shipping, ship repairs, fishing, captive ports for specific industries, all
weather ports, tourism and sports. ' '

Andhra Pradesh was amongst the first maritime states to recognize the imperative need for
increased port infrastructure and the role that the private sector would be required to play in
developing the same. ' : ' '

'Furt'her, Government of Andhra Pradesh, is focusing on development of _robuSt infrastructure across
the state, including the ports of the State, where in your.Company is operating and this will add
thrust to the business of your Company.

India had been the largest importer of thermal coal in the world, however due to Ministry of Coal
mission to reduce dependency on Imported Coal by 'enhancing the domestic production by Coal
india to 700 MMT from 550 MMT, the reduction in coal imports is inevitable. As coal contributes by
70% of the total dry bulk imports at Visakhapatam region, the drop is coal volumes is expected to be
around 40-50%. : : '

The sector continues to be impacted by challenges viz, delay in various Government
clearances/approvals, dredging delays, shortage of ancillary/support infrastructure viz., railway
rakes, high prices of imperted coal etc., affecting the viability of projects. :

Business Overview

The Company was incorporated on April 20, 2010 pursuance to the Letter of Award by
Vishakhapatnam Port Trust (VPT) a major port, for the purpose of Mechanizing and Modernizing the
General Cargo Berth at the outer Harbor of Vishakhapatnam Port. The Company entered into
Concession Agreement with Vishakhapatnam Port Trust on June 10, 2010 for strengthening of Berth
for 200,000 DWT capacity vessels and mechanization of complete Coal based Cargo handling .
facilities for General Cargo Berth (GCB) at Vizag Port, Visakhapatnam. The Company has been
awarded Concession effective from October 08, 2010 for a period of 30 years.

VGCB has completed sixth year of its operations during the year under review. _

Against the volumes of 6.93 MMT of cargo in 2015-16, VGCB handled 4.2 MMT in 2016-17. The
reduction in volumes at VGCB is 38.5% and the reduction in coal volumes in Lhe vizag region Is also
approx. 39%. This is largely due to increase in the coal prices of Imported Coal and availability of
domestic coal to Cement, Sponge & Steel Producers. Whereas the prices of Coking (nal increased




from CIF USD 80-90 to USD 300, the prices of South African Coal increased from CIF USD 37 to USD
60 pmt. Similarly low Gev Indonesian coal prices increased from CIF USD 22-24 to USD 32. Whereas,
the production of domestic coal has increased from 537 MMT in 2015-16 to 590 MMT in 2016-17.
Against the reduction of import coal volumes and increased supply of domestic cdal, due to over
tapacity of port against demand, the competltlon among portsﬁermlnals has [ed to reductlon in
- operating margins.- : -

3. DIVIDEND -
No Dividend was declared for the current financiai year due to loss incurred by the Company.
: 4.-TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED I)IVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND, PROTECTION FUND

“The prowsmns of. Section 125 under . Companles Act 2013 do not apply as there was no drwdend._ '
‘declared and paid Iast year.

5, MATERIAL CHANGES AND COIIIIMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION ‘OF THE
'COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments aﬁecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to whlch this f'nancra! statements relate on the date of this

_ report
LE SUBSIDIARIES JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
E '_I‘he Company d0es not have any_Subsidiar’ies orJ_oint ventures,

7. DIRECTDIIS & KEY'MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

. Board of Drrectors of your Company as on date of this report comprrses of Mr. G R. Arun Kumar, Mr,

Klshore Kumar Rajagopal Mr, AR, Narayanaswamy, Mr. R. Kannan and Ms. Pooja Yadava.

‘Ms. Pocua Yadava, Director ret:res at. thls Annual General Meetlng and. belng ellglble offers herself.
for re-election.

Mr. Pratik Pravin Agarwal and Mr M: Siddigi resrgned as Dlrector from the Companv effective from
21% February 2017 & 25“‘ April 2017 respectwely ' : :

Mr. Kishore Kumar Rajagopal was appomted as an Addltlonal Drrector of the Company by the Board
of Dwectors in its meeting held on 27th Aprll 2017. '

Key Managerial Personnel {K.M.P.} of your Company as on date of this report are Mr. Biplab Ray
_(CEO) Mr. Srikanth Gudivada (CF.0.) and Mr. Kumar Ankﬁ (CS. & Head - Legal).

8. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The Company had 5 (Five} Board meetmgs during the financial year under review, on 22-Apr-16, 30- -
Jun 16, 22 .luI 16, 20 Oct-16, 20-Jan-17




The Company had 4 (Four) Audit Committee meetings during the financial year under review, 22-
Apr-16, 22-jul-16, 20-0ct-16, 20-Jan-17 '

2. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

Globally, as part of good governance practice, Board evaluates its performance. The Companies Act,
2013 (Act) has mandated the need to ensure effectiveness of the Board governance and requires a
statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of
its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors.

Structured questionnaires/performance evaluation forms were prepared taking into consideration
inputs received from the Directors for evaluation of the Board effectiveness which were broadly
hased on the parameters like Strategic and Operatlonal Qversight, the Dynamics, Composition, Level
of Expertise, Terms of Reference, Board support and processes, Governance etc. The Board
evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning and that of the Committees and of individual directors
by seeking their inputs on various aspects of Board/Committee Governance.

The Board considered and discussed the inputs received from the Directors.

Further, the Independent Directors at their meeting, reviewed the performance of Board, and of
other Non- Executive Directors. :

10. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfil all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves
to be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
relevant rules,

11. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
The Audit Committee consists of the following members:

a. Mr. R. Kannan
b. Mr, AR, Narayanaswamy
c. Mr. G.R. Arun Kumar

The above composition of the Audit Committee consists of mdcpendcnt D|rectors viz., Mr_ R, Kannan
and Mr. A.R. Narayanaswamy who form the majority.

Your Company has established a robust vigil mechanism for reparting of genuine concerns through
the Whistle Blower Policy of the Group. As per the whistleblower policy adopted by various
businesses in the group, all complaints are reported to Group Head — Management Assurance who is -
independent of operating management and businesses. In line with global practices, dedicated email
1Ds and centralized database have been created to facilitate receipt of complaints. A 24X7 whistle
blower hotlineé cum web based portal was also launched during the year. All employees and
stakeholders canregister their integrity related cancerns either by ealling on a toll free number or by
writing on the web based portal that is managed by a third party. The hotline provides muitiple local
language options. Afler the investigation, established cases are brought to Group Ethics Commitiee
for decision making. All cases reported as part ul whistle blower mechanism are taken to their logical
conclusion within a reasgnable timeframe. :




As part of the Code of Conduct, the Company has a Whistle blower Policy, where any instance of
non-adherence to the Policy or any observed unethical behaviour is to be brought to the attention of .
the Head of Management Assurance Services/Audit Committee Chairman. During the year under
review, there were no reports under the mechanism. :

The Whistle Blower Policy is also posted on the website of the Company.

12. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee cansists of the following members:
a. Mr. R. Kannan

b. Mr. A.R. Narayanaswamy

¢. Mr. G R Arun Kumar

13. COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION
AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The Company’s Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration,
.Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, fn'dependence of Directors and other related matters as
provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is derived from- its Nommatlon and -
Remuneration Policy, brief extracts of which are as under: :

a. Assist the Board in identifying persons who are quahfied to become directors and who may
be appointed in senior management. ' :

B. Formulate the criteria and to carry out evaluation of every director's performance, including
Independent Directors and Board as a whole, :

C. Formulate the criteria for determlnmg quallﬂcatrons positive attrrbutes and independence
of a director. :

- d. Formulate and recommend to the Board a pohcy, relating to the remuneration.
€. Devising apolicy on Board diversity.

14. DETAILS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/KMP’S/EMPLOYEES
Directors of your Company do not draw remuneration,

Below s the sitting fees bemg paid to  Independent Directors of the Company:

sl Mame of the Meeting . Sitting Fees in  Rs. (per
| No. _ meeting)

1 Board Meeting 25000

2 | Audit Committee Meeting 25000

3 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting | 10000 -

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5{2) of The Compames
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of
the Company, will be provided upon request.

None of the above employees is a reiative of any directors 'of_the Company.




-In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Repost and Accounts are being sent to the Members and
others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’ particulars which is available for
inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on
working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual Generai Meeting. If any Member
is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company in this rega rd.

15. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Company has not developed and |mpiemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as
the said provisions are not applicable.

16. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT '

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submit its responsibility Statement:— :

{a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the appllcable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b} the directors had selected ‘such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable_and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
‘state of affairs of the company at the end of the financiat year and of the proflt and loss of the
company for that period; . '
{c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the mamtenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

~ (e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controis to be followed by the company and that
such internal  financial controls are adequate and were operating  effectively.
{f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and cperating effectively.

17. AUDITORS'_ REPORT ON ACCOUNTS/SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Statutory Audit Report and Secretanal Audit Report are self-explanatory and therefore does not
call for any further comments or explanations. -

18. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 301003E/E300005), were
appomted as Statutory Auditors for a period of Five years in the Annual General Meeling held on
24™ June, 2016 subject to ratification by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual general Meeting.

19. SECRETARIAL AUDIT :

Sccrctarial audit report for the financial year 2016-17, as provided by M/s. ABR& Associates,
Practising Company Secretary, is annexed to this Report as Annexure .~




20. COST AUDITORS

In pursuance of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Record and
~Audit) Amendment Rules 2014, your Board has appointed CMA Prakash Uppalapathi, Cost &

Management Accountants as the Cost Auditor of the Company under Section 148 of the Companies

Act, 2013 for the financial year 2017-18 at a remuneration of Rs 70, 000 The cost audit report will
~ be filed W|th the Central Government as per the tlmellnes

_'21. IN_-TERNAL AU_DITORS_'
. The Board on the -retommendatfons of the Audit Committee have appointed PKF Sridhar &
- Santhanam LLP, Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditors of the Company for the year 2017-
18. - - | ' o - .
22, SHARE CAPITAL.
The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March 2017 was Rs 32,108,000/- (Rupees Three Crores
Twenty One Lakhs Eight Thousa nd Only). During the year under review, the Company has not issued

~ shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity. Mr. Pratlk Agarwal
helds 1000 shares as a nominee of Vedanta lelted

None of the other Dir.ectors of the Company hoId sh’ares or convertibie i'nst-ruments of the Com panyr

22, PARTICU LARS OF LOANS GUARANTEES CR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT 2013

. There Were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

23. pAR_TtCULARs OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES :

B Ail related party transactlons that were entered during the financial year were on arm’s Iength basis

and were in ordlnary course of Business. There are no materially “significant . Related Party
‘Transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
Accordingly, the disclosure required u/s 134{3}{h) of the Compames Act, 2013 in Form AQC-2 is not
applicable to your Company

None of the Dlrectors has any pecunlary relatlonshms or tran‘sartlnnq vis-a-vis the Company

24, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION FORE]GN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO

1. A. Energy conservation Measures —
&, Use of single transformer is planned with change over provision for optlmlsmg Ioad
on the transformer,
'B. Implementation of Energy Management System — expected from June 2017 -
PPA for purchase of Solar Power is in place and supply is expected from June -
2017. :
C. Capital investment in energy conservation equipment — Nil.




2. Technology Absorption Measures — Nil

3. Forex Earnings & outgo

{inCr.)
Total fareign exchange earned and outgo . 2016-17 2015-16
i. CIF value of imports - . . -
il Expenditure in foreign currency ' 2.87 225 '
| iii. FOB value of exports ' - -
iv. Foreign exchange earned — others - -

25. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

All the risks associated with the business are identified and allocated to respective designated
owners to manage/control the risks and keep risk exposures within the acceptable limits.

Our risk management framework is designed to be a simple, consistent and clear for managing and _

reporting risks. Risk management is embedded in our critical businass activities, functions and
processes. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business
objectives and.enhance the Company’s competitive advantage.

Risk Management policy Is designed/evaluated by Board of Directors through Audit Committee and
policy is in alignment with the Vedanta Group’s Risk Management Policy.

26. DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any de‘pos’its". during the year under review. -
27. SHARES .

a. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

b. SWEAT EQUITY | .
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

¢. BONUS SHARES
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review,

d. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
Ihe Company has not pravided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees,

28. ANNUAL RETURN




The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the
Companies {Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure Il and is

attached to this Report.

29, DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE {PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place Policy on Preventien, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at
Workplace in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee {ICC) has been set
up to redress complalnts received regarding sexual harassment. A]! employees (permanent
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the
year 2016-17:

. No of complaints recewed Nil

. No of complaints disposed off: Nil

30. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities for their continued support éjxtended to your Companies activities .
during the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their
support and confidence reposed on your Company.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

!
\z\,, m
Diréctor irector

Kishore Kumar Rajagopal G R Arun Kumar

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 27, 2017




Annexure -f
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year 2016-17
To, _
The Members,

M/s. VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED.
SIPCOT Industrial Complex, Madurai Bye Pass Road, _
T. V. Puram P.O, Thoothukudi, Tamil Nadu-628002, INDIA.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE
LIMITED (CIN:U35100TN2010PTC075408) (hereinafter called the “The Company”) having its
registered office situated at SIPCOT Industrial Complex, Madurai Bye Pass Road, T. V. Puram P.0,
‘Thoothukudi, Tamil Nadu-628002, INDIA, Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us.a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory comphances and expressing
my opinion thereon.

_Based on our verification of the M/s. VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED books,
papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and
also. the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the year-ended 31" March, 2017 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-pracesses and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, Minutes Books, Forms and Returns filed and other
records maintained by “the Company” for the year.ended 31"March, 2017 according to the -
provisions of: : :

~a) The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 {'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

¢)  The Deposilories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

d} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings; ' :

e} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribéd under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 {'SEBI Act’);

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantiai Acqwmnon of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulatlons 2011; - Not Applicable, _ :

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of ‘India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; ~ Not Applicable.

¢}’ The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capitat and DI'S(‘|OSUI‘Q
Requirements) Reguiations, 2009; — Not Applicable.

d} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stuck Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme} Guidelines, 1899; — Not Appllca ble.

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure

"~ Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {Companys Non convertible Dchentures are
redeemed on 8" May, 2016).




f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an |ssue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Compames Act and dealmg with client; — .
Not Applicable.
g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equlty Shares) Regulatlons
- 2009; — Not Applicable,
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998— Not Applicable. '
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
{i} Secretarial Standards {55-1 & 55-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
india.
{ii) Listing Agreement entered into by the Company W|th Stock Exchange

. We report that,” based on the information provided by the. Company, its officer and
authorized representatives during the conduct of audit of the Company, in our opinion,
adequate systems and process and control mechanism exist in the company to monitor and
ensure compliance with the laws specrf‘cally applrcable to the Company are mentioned
below.

a) The Major Port Trusts Act, 1963.

b) Dock Workers (Safety, Health and Welfare) Act 1986and Dock Workers (Safety, Heaith
and Welfare) Rules, 1990, Dock Workers (Safety, Health and Weifare) ‘Regulations,
1950.

¢) The Visakhapatnam Port Trust {Licensing of Stevedores and Allied Matters) Regulatlons
1987,

d) Coastal Regulation Zone, 1991. -

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with the applicable Labour &Industrial laws, Environmental laws, Rules,
Regulations and guidelines made thereunder as listed below....

i, Child Labour (Prohibition.and Regulation) Act, 1986,

ii. Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and Employees State Insurance (General)
Regulations, 1950 and Employees' State Insurance Rules, 1950.

ii. Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, Employees’
Provident Fuhds Scheme, 1952, Employees' Pension Scheme, 1995, and £fmployees’
Deposit-Linked Insurance Scheme, 1976,

iv. Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 & Contract Labour (Regulaticn and
Abolition) Central Rules, 1971. _ .

v. Employment Exchanges ({Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959 &
Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Rules, 1960.

vi, Apprentices Act, 1961 & Apprenticeship Rules, 1991.

vii. The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and The Equal Remuneration Rules, 1976.

viii. Minimum Wages Act, 1948 & Minimumn Wages (Central} Rules, 1950.
~ix. Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923 & Workmen's Compensation (Central) Ru'es, 1924,

- x. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 & Payment of Gratuity {Central} Rules, 1972,

xi.- Payment of Wages Act, 1936.

xil. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 & The Payment of Bonus-Rules, 1975,

xiil. Industrial Employment {Standing Orders) Act, 1946 & Industrial Employment (Standing
Orders) Central Rules, 1947,
xiv. Industnal D|sputes Act, 1947 & Ind ustnal Dlsputes (Central} Rules 1957.




Xy,

Xvi,
xvii,
Xviii.

Xix,
XX,

- Xl
HXii.
Xxiii.
XXiv.
XXV,
XXV,
Xxvii.
xxviii.
T XXX,
KXX.
XXXi.
XHXi.
XX%iii.
AKXV,
XXV
KAWL
WV,
XXxviil.
© O XXXiX.

xl.
xli, -

xlii.

The inter-state Migrant Warkmen ({Regulation. of Employi’nent and Conditions of
Service} Act, 1978 & The Inter-state Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and

* Conditions of Service) Rules, 1980.

National Festival Holidays under negotiable instrument Act 1881.

Private Security Agencies {regulation} Act 2005.

Andhra Pradesh Shops and Establishments Act, 1988 &Andhra Pradesh Shops and
Establishments Rules, 1990.

A.P. Tax on Professions, Trades, Calhngs and Employments Act and Rules, 1987,

Andhra Pradesh Value Added Tax Act, 2005 and Andhra Pradesh Value Added Tax Rules
2005, :

Finance Act, 1994 and Service Tax Rules, 1994.

Central Sales Tax Act, 1956, Central Sales Tax (Regulatlon and Turnover} Rules, 1957
and Central Sales Tax (Andhra Pradesh) Rules, 1957,

Central Excise Act, 1944 and Rules.

The Customs Ac't,‘1962 and Rules.

Income Tax Act, 1961 and Income Tax Rules, 1962.

The Environment Impact Assessment Notification 1994 amended 2006.

Environment (Protection} Act, 1986 & Envircnment {Protection) Rules, 1986.

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and Hazardous Wastes {Management, Handling
and Trans boundary Movement} Rules, 2008.

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and The Noise Pollutlon (Regulation and
Controi) Rules, 2000, '

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and E- Waste (Management & Handlmg) Rules,

2011,

Air {Prevention and Control of Pollutlon) Act, 1981 & Alr (Preventlon & Control of
Pollution) Rules 1982.

Environment (Protection} Act, 1986 & Batteries (Management and Handling) Rules,
2001,

Fovironment (Protection) Act 1998 & Bio- Medlcal Waste [Management and Handling}
Rules, 1998.

Water (Preventlon & Control of Pollut|on) Act, 1974 & Water {Prevention and Contro) of
Pollution) Rules 1975,

Water {Prevention and Contro! of Pollution) Cess Act, 197? and Water (Prevention And

" Control of Pollution) Cess Ruies, 1978.

The Electricity Act, 2003 and the Indian Electricity rules 1956.

The Legal Metrology Act, 2008 & The Legal metrology (General) Ruiles 2011,

Indian Wireless Telegraphy Act, 1933.

Andhra Pradesh Fire Service Act, 1999 and Fire Services {Fire Prevention and Fire Safety)
Rules,.

Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006.

The Indian Standard Code of Practice for Selectlon instailation and Maintenance of
Portabfe First Aid Fire Extinguishers, :

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redres_sal) Act,
2013 & Rules. :

5. We further report that the Company has in my opinion, complied with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made under that Act as notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company with regard to:

s Farms, Returns, documents and resolutions f'equired to the Filed with Registrar of

Companies.




¢ Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board M'eetings'.,_ agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent to seven days in advance and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful partlupatlon at the meetlng

Majority decision is carried through, while the dlssentmg members’ views, if any, are
captured and recorded as part of the Minutes.

s Minutes of proceedmgs of General Meetmg and of the Board and its Committee
meetmgs

e Approvals of the Members, “the Board of Directors and the Committees of Dlrectors
wherever required.

¢ The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper halance of
Independent Directors and Women Director. :

{Curing the Audit Period, Mr. DD Jafan {resigned on 20.10.2016}, Mr. Pratik Pravin Agarwal {resigned

on _21.02.2017) resigned as Directors of the Company and Mr. Guggilam Rajagopalan Arun Kumar

appointed as Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 20.10.20146.),

'(Durfng the Audit period, Mr. Siva Ganesh Vellambi resigned as CFO & Mr. D K Manral resigned as
CEO of the Company on 22.04.2016 and Mr. Srikanth Gudivada appomted as CFO & Blplah Ray
appointed as CEO of the company w.e.f. 22.04.2016.) &

{(During the Audit period Mr. Aravind Kumar'Matta resigned as Company Sécretary on 30.07.2016
and Mr. Ankit Kumar appointed as Company Secretary of Company w.e.f. 20.10.2016.)

. Appo]ntment and remuneration of Statutory Auditors.

. Borrowmgs and reglstratlon, Mod|flcatmn and satisfaction of charges wherever
- applicable, .

» Format of Balance Sheet and statement of profit and loss is as per Schedule Ill of the
Companies Act, 2013. '

fi. Woe further report that, during the Audit Period, Company has redeemed the remaining
portion of Non -Convertible Debentures aggregating to Rs.75.00 Crores.

'For ABR & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

. . {A.BHIMESWARA RAD)
Place: Hyderabad ' Proprietor
Date; 24.04.2017 _ M. No. 35521; C.P No.13380.

Note: This report is to be read with our ietter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE-A’ and forms an
integral part of this report.




To,

"ANNEXURE-A"

The Members,

M/s. VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED.
SIPCOT Industrial Complex, Madurai Bye Pass Road,

T. V. Puram P.O, Thoothukudi, Tamil Madu-628002, INDIA.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this fetter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.

- OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion, :

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

~ Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we -have obtained the Management representatlon about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliahce of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, ruies regulatlons
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis. - _

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company,

For ABR & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

(A.BHIMESWARA RAQ)

Place: Hyderabad ~ Proprietor
Date: 24.04.2017 . M. No. 35521: C.P Ng.13380.




Annexure -l

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2017

Pursuant to Section 92 {3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Admlmstratron] Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION- & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

1 U25100TN2010PTCO75408
2 Registration Date 20/04/2010 |
3 Name of the Company Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited
4 Category/5ub-category of the Company ‘Public Company {by virtue of being a subsidiary of
) _ _ public company)/Limited by shares
5 Address of the Registered office & contact details | SIPCOT tndustrial Complex, Madurai Bypass Road TV
Puram P.0., Tuticorin - 628002 .
Email ID;: kumar.ankit@vedanta,co.in
Phcne no.: 0891 279 5686 -
6 Whether listed company No
7 Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar Karvy Computershare Private Limited, Avenue 4,
& Transfer Agent, if any. Street No. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500035
H. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (Al the business activities contributing 10 %
or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)
- 8. Name and Description of main Products/ " | NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
No. Services - Praoduct/ Service : Company
"1 | Operation of Port Terminal Facility 52220 100%
. ~ PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
s. NAME & ADDRESS OF CIN HOLDING %OF APPLICABLE
No. | COMPANY _ SHARESHELD SECTION
i. Vedanta Limited {formarly L13209GA1965PLCOC00A4 Holding 100% - . | 2{4€)
known as Sesa Sterlite Ltd) ' : :




Iv. $HARE HOLDING PATTERN {Equity Share Capital Break-up as p_ercentége of Total Equity} '

*A.. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year [As on 31-March-2016]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31-March-2017]

Demat

Phys_ical

Total

% of
Total.

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

% Change
during
the year -

A. Promoter s

Share_s

1) indian

a} Individual/ HUF.

b} Central Govt

c) Statl'e Govt(s)

d) Bodies Corp-
VEDL{along with
narhinee
shareholder)

32107000

32107000

09.997

32108000

32108000

100

e) Banks / FI

NONE

f) Any other

Total - _
shareholding of
Promioter {A)

32107ﬁ00

21067000 .

0%.997

32108000

2108000

Qo

B. Public
Shareholding.

1. institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b} Banks / Fi

NONE

¢} Central Govt

d) State Govt{(s)

&) Venture Capital
Funds

NONE

f} Insurance
Companies

g) Flis’

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others

Sub-tota! {B)(1):-

2. Non--
Institutions

a} Bodies Corp.

i} Indian - Leighton

i) Qversaas

1000

1000

D.003

b} Individuals




i} Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital -
‘uptoRs. 1 lakh

NA

NA,

NA

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal

| share.capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh

¢} Others {specify)

MNon Resident
Indians .

COverseas.
Corporate Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts -

| Foreign Bodies - D
R .

NONE

.| Sub-total {B}{2}:- 1000 1000 10.003 0 0 0
Total Public 1000 1000 - 0.003 0 0 0
Shareholding: ' '

{8)=(B){1)+ {B)(2}

C. Shares held by

Custodian for

GDRs & ADRs- _ }

| Grand-Total 32108000 32108000 [100- 32108000 R2108000 [100

{A+B+C) o ' ’ : '
B) Shareholding of Promoter-
5N 'Shéréhbid#ng at Lhe beginning of the year Shafeho!l_:llng at the end of the y.ear % change
Shareholder's  |— ' — — S , __| shareholdi
N rs No. of Shares | % of total | %of Shares | No, of Shares | % of total %0f Shares | ng during
. a | Sharesof | Pledged /- . : | Shares of tha | Pledged/ the year
the encumbered company encumbered
company | to total : to total
. i shares shares
VEDANTA LIMITED
{along with -
Nominee 32}0?000 . 99.997 MA 321108000 100 NA 0
1 Share hold_er}

C) Chénge in P_ror'no'ters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)




_Shareholding. .

Cumulative Shareholding

SN _'Palj'ticularé
| No. of shares % of total No. of shares | % of total
shares of shares of the
the company
.| company -
i At the béginning of the year 32107000 i 99,997 32107000 99.997
2 | Atthe end'of the year 32108000 | 100 3210800 100

No other Director hold any shares in the Company.

' D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:

{Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding during of the Cumulative Shareholding
' Shareholders - Leighton year .| during the year
e S No. of shares | % of total No.of % of total
- | shares of shares | shares of the
the ' company
, company
Afthe beginning of the year 1000 0,003 1000 0.003
At the end of the year 0o 0 0 0
E} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
5N Shareholding of each Directors and each Shareholdmg during the | Cumulative Shareholding
Key Managerial Personnel . | year “during theyear
No. of % of total. No. of % of total
shares shares of the ‘| shares shares of the
: ' company- ' company
1 Pratik Agarwal '
' At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise Increase / Decreasé in 1 1000 0.003 1000 0.003
Promoters Shareholding during the year ' '
specifying the reasons for increase
| /decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.): : : .
1000 - |.0.003. 1000 0.003

At the end of the year

duc for payment

V) INDEBTEDNESS Indebtedness ofthe Company mcludang interest outstandlng/accrued but not

Secured :
Loans . Unsew_md . . 1otal Indebtedness
excluding Loans | Deposits .
deposits {in | (In Cr.) (in {:r.]
Cr.)
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year _
i) Principal Amount 196.19 193.76 Nil 389.95




ii) Interest due but not paid Nil 3.94 il 3.94
“iii) Interest accrued but not due 6.34 NIL Nil 6.34
Total {i+ii+iii) 202.53 197.70 il 400.23
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition 270.43 | 272.25 Nil 542.68
* Reduction 77.81 458.13 Nif 535.94 B
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year ' . _ .
i} Principal Amount - 388.81 7.88 Nit 396.69 |
ii) Interest due but not paid L [ 0.93 | Nil 093
iif} Interest accrued but not due 262 Mil Nil 2.62
.| Total (i+ii+iii) 391.43 8.82 il 400.25
Vi, REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount
| ) {in Lacs)
i) | Gross salary Nil.
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17{1) of the Nil.
| Income-tax Act, 1961 )
() Value of perquisites ufs 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 Nil
(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, il
2 Stock Option il
3 Sweat Equity Nil
| 4 Commission - -as % of profit - others, specify... Nil
5 Others, please specify ' ' Nil
Total {A) il
Ceiling as per the Act Nil
B. Remuneration to other directors
' ] {Amt i Bs.)
SN. Particulars of Remuneratfon | Name of Directors Total
Amount
1 'Independe.nt Directors Mr. R. Kannan Mr. AR
_ Narayanaswamy
Fee for attending board Rs. 25000 per 8M Rs. 25000 per BM il
committee meetings Rs. 25000 per ACM Rs. 25000 per ACM
' Rs. 10000 per NRCM | Rs. 1000C per NRCM |
Commission Nil LI ' Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil N1
Total {1} Nii Nil Nl
2 Other Nen-Executive Directors | Mr. Pratik Agarwal_ . | Mr. GR. Arun Kumar | Mr. M. | ms.
' Siddigi Pogja |




o it o]

Yadav

‘Fee for attending board
| committee meetings

Nil

il

Nil

Nil

Nii

Commission

il

Nil

NI

il

Wil

Others, please specify

NA

NA

NA

NA

il

Total {2)

il

Nil

Nit

Nil

il

Total {B)=(1+2)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Total Managerial
Remuneration

il

Nil

il

Wil

il

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

C.REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL'PERSONNEL'OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

{Amt in Rs.j

Particulars
of
Remunera
tion

Mr. D.K.
Manral -
Chief {CEQ)

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. V.S,
Ganesh
{CFO)

Aravind
‘Matta
(Cs)

Kumar

Ankit (Till

-Fah'17)

(Cs)

Srikanth
Gudivada
(CFO)

| Biplab Ray

_[CEO)

Total

Gross

3233478

1418987

1376904

1198277

4614769

5476737

11666687

as per
provisions
contained
in section
17(1) of
the
Incorme-
tax Act,
1561

(b) Value
of
berquisite
sufs 17{2)
Income-
tax Act,
1961

{c) Profits
in lieu of
salary .
under
section
17(3)
Income-
tax Act,
1961

Stock
Option

Sweat

Equity |




4 | Commissio

5 Others,

- as % of
profit
Others,
| specify

please
specify

NOMNE

Total

J

NISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Vil. PENALTI ES_/ PU
Type :

Section of the

| Companies

Act

-Brief
Description

Details of Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding fees
imposed

Authority

[RD / NCLT/
COURT)

Appeal made,
if any {give
Details)

A. COMPANY

Penaity
Punishment

Compounding

NONE

B. DIRECTORS

| Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NONE

Penalty
Punishment

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT .

Compounding

NONE

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 27, 2017

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

\q,\ \- W 1
Director/.ff’.’

Kishore Kumar Rajagopal

Direct
G R Afun Kumar




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Vizag General Cargo Berth Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a



true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017,
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 26 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. As per books of accounts of the Company and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Company did not have cash balance as on November 8, 2016 and December 30,
2016 and has no cash dealings during this period



Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2015 prepared in accordance with Ind AS, included
in these standalone Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who had
audited the standalone financial statements for the relevant periods. The report of the predecessor
auditor on the comparative financial information and the opening balance sheet dated April 27, 2017
expressed an unmodified opinion.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Naman Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 502405
Place of Signature: Gurgaon
Date: April 27, 2017



Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Vizag General cargo Berth Private Limited (‘the Company”)

(i) (@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

(©)

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year
but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name
of the company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not
commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the port services, and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been
a slight delay in a few cases. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance are
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding,



(©)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
The provision relating to Employee State Insurance are not applicable to the Company.

According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax,
wealth-tax, service tax, duty of custom, value added tax and cess on account of any

dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount (Rs)* Period to Forum where
statute dues which the the dispute is
amount pending
relates
Service tax Non-payment 29,30,463 2012-13 and | Commissioner
of Service tax 2013-14 of Central
on Berth hire Excise
charges Customs &
Service tax
Service tax Irregular 47,074,941 2011-12to Commissioner
Cenvat credit 2014-15 of Central
availed on Excise
ineligible Customs &
capital goods Service tax

*excluding interest and penalty

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to bank or debenture
holders. The Company did not have any outstanding dues to financial institutions or
government.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the
purposes for which they were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the officers and employees
of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

The Company has not paid managerial remuneration during the current year.
Accordingly provisions of clause 3(xi) are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,




2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under
review and hence not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Naman Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 502405
Place of Signature: Gurgaon
Date: April 27, 2017



ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH
PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Vizag General Cargo Berth
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established under the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (“COSO 2013 criteria”),
which considers the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting in COSO 2013
criteria, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Naman Agarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 502405

Place: Gurgaon
Date: April 27, 2017



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017

i As at As at AS at
Particulars Notas March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
— {Rupees} {Rupees) (Rupees)
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
{a} Preperty, Plant and Equipment 44, 14,613,589 12,817,334 22,347,487
(k) Intangible assets 48 5,750,563,401 5,989,707,788 6,160,973,281
(€} Flnantial assets
(i} Trade Receivables 5 17,022,351 - -
(It} Odhers financlal assets 6 26,051,228 26,051,228 17,513,528
{d} Income tax assets {Net of Provisions) 103,736,704 109,187,776 60,167,711
Total non current assets 5,911,987,273 6,143,764,127 6,261,002,017
2 Current assets
{a) Inventyries 7 18,890,624 43,029,402 33,081,726
{b) Finandal assets
{i} Investments =4 - - 251,316,207
(i) Trade receivables 9 132,568,352 114,309,517 68,246,195
{iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 35,028,597 18,070,680 16,184,108
(iv) Loans 11 62,252 . 127,196
{v) Other financial assets -] 1,156,589 2,346,175 8,906,550
{c) Cthercurrent assets 12 24,880,618 17,365,635 10,101,632
Total current assets 212,587,032 195,620,809 396,963,614
Total assets 5,124,574,308 . ..6:339,384,936 0857065631
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
1 EQUITY
{a} Equity share capital 13 321,080,000 321,080,000 321,080,000
{b) Cther equity 438,967,702 892,295 688 882,208,010
Total equity 760,047,702 1,213,375,688 1,203,288,010
2 LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
{a} Finandial liabilities
(1} Barrowings 14 2,430,703,737 1,214,566,465 753,855,675
{b) Deferred tax llabilitias {Nat) 30 691,527, 8919 598,838,021 437,806,040
{c) Other non-current liabilities i5 314,260,790 328,248,910 342,217,327
Total non current liabilities 3,436,522,446 2,141 ,653,396 1,533,969,042
Current kHahifities
{a) Financial lizbilities
(i) Brrowings 15 77,500,000 1,935,000,000 245,042,982
(i) Trade pavables 17 73,965,740 74,275,151 72,042,083
{iii} Other financial liabilities i8 1,731,179,810 926,063,594 3,576,148,523
(b)Y Other current Kabilities is 37,764,626 42,765,669 21,990,866
{c) Pravisions 19 7,593,981 5,251,438 5,484,025
Total vurrent llabllities 1,928,004,157 2,984,355,852 3,920,708,579
Totai liabilities 5,364,526,603 5,126,009,248 5,454,677,621

Total equity and liabilitles
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report, of even date

For S.R Batliboi 8 Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Regtstration No, 301003E/E200005

per Naman Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 502405

Place: Gurugram
Date : April 27, 2017

5,124,574,305

6,335,384,236

6,657,96%,631

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

GR Arun Kumar
Director
DIN @ 01874769

Lo Yot

Srikantk Gudivada ~—

Chief Financlal Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : April 27, 2017

Kishore Kumar
Diractor
DIN: 07148888

o et

Kumar Ankit
Company Secretary
ECS51 Mambership Na.
FCS 9077




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{Rupees) (Rupees)
I Income
(a) Revenue from operations 29 1,057,517,413 1,711,982,426
(b} Other incorne 21 19,188,933 21,010,635
Total iIncome 1,076,706,346 1,732,993,061
II Expenses
{a) Employee benefits expense 22 51,661,651 65,467,512
{b) Royalty 489,915,521 644,447,652
{¢) Finance costs 23 325,160,100 299,664,738
(d)} Depreciation and amortization expense 4A 8L 4B 252,134,489 249,702,228
{e) Other expenses 24 320,397,046 302,334,048
Total expences 1,439,268,807 1,561,616,178
III {Loss)/Profit before tax {362,562,461) 171,376,883
1V Tax expense
Deffered tax 30 02,689,898 160,941,620
92,689,898 160,941,620
¥ ({Loss)/Preofit after tax (455,252,359) 10,435,263
V1 Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reciassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligations 1,824,373 {347,586)
VII Total comprehensive income for the year {453,327,9886) 10,087,677
VIII (Loss}/earnings per equity share
(a) Basic -Face value 10 /- 25 {14.18) 8.33
{b) Dituted -Face value 10 /- 25 {14.18) 0.06

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our repert of even date
For S.R Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Flrm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

per Naman Agarwal
Fartner
Membership No.: 502405

Place: Gurugram
Date : April 27, 2017

Far and on behalf of Board of Directors

GR Arun Kamar
Director
DIN : 81874769

Srikana;l;iudivadé__

Chief Financlal Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : Aprit 27, 2017

Kishore Kumar
Director
DIN: 07148888

S et

Kumar Ankit
Company Secretary

1CSI Membership No.
FC5 9077



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BEHRTH PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

(a) Eauity Share Capital

Particulars Number of shares Amount in Rs
As at April 01, 2015, March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2017 32,108,000 321,080,000
(b) Other Equity
Particulars Equity component of Retained earnings Total equity
compound financial
instrument -

See Note L4(ii)

Balance as at April 1, 2015 1.492,180,032 (609,972,022} 882,208,010
Profit for the year - 10,435,284 10,435,264
Re-measurement of defined benefit - {347,586) (347,586)
obliaation

Balance as at March 31, 2016 1,492,180,032 {559,884,344) 892,295,688
Loss for the year (455,252,359} (455,252,359}
Re-measurement of defined benefit 1,824,373 1,924,373
obligation

Balance as at March 3i, 2017 1,492,180,632 {1,053,212,330) 438,967,702

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Mo, 301003E/E300005

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

per Naman Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.: 502405

Place: Gurugram
Date : April 27, 2017

GR Arun Kumar
Director
DIN ; 01874769

(. §oondt

Srikanth Gudivada
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : April 27, 2017

Kishore Kumar
Director
DIN: 07148888

y Sy

Kumar Ankit
Company Secretary
1CSI Membership
No. FCS 9077



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

particulars Year endad Year ended
March 31, 2017  March 33, 2016
(Rupees) {Rupees)
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Met: (Loss)/Profit before tax (362,562,461 171,376,883
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expanse 252,134,489 249,702,228
Interast expense 325,160,100 295,664,738
Interest income (4,259,760} (1,203,254}
Fair value gain on financial assets held for trading (823,893} (3,458,248)
Liabllities/provisions no longer required written back - (8.262.590)
Deffered government grant (13,968,052) (13,968,054)
Gain on foreign currency transactions and translation - (1,482,195}
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 53,636,429 -
249,316,852 692,369,408
Working capital adjustments
Decrease /(Increase) in inventories (2,558,308} (9,947,677
{Increase) in trade receivables (35.281,186) {46,063,322)
{Increase)/Decrease in other assets {5,926,360) 2,163,484
{Decreasel/Increase in trade pavable {309.411) 10,495,658
Encrease/{Decrease) In other [iabilities and provisions 65,615,652 {62,520,816)
Cash flow generated from operations 270,857,240 586,496,735
Income tax refund/{paid) during vear 5,451,067 {49.020,065)
Net cash flow generated from operations (A) 276,308,307 537,476,670
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including intangibles (4,815,757 (16,552,185}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment including intangibles 5,577,000 -
Purchases of short term investments {552,600,000) {948,000,000}
Proceeds from sale of short term investments 553,423,893 1,202.774.568
Interest received 4,297 873 120,325
Net cash flow generated from investing activities (B} 6,883,009 238,342,704

. Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from term loans
Repayment of non-convertible debentures
Loan from related party

2,695,000,000
{750,000.000}
787,500,000

1,164,922,606
{3,078,533,918)
1,935,000,000

(2,645,000,000) (315,000,000}
(353,733,399} {480,321,490}

{266,233, 399} {773,932,802)

Repayment of lcan from retated parties
Interest and finance charges paid
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalent (A+B4C) 16,857,917 1,886,572
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (Refer note-10) 18,070,680 16,184,108
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note -10) 35,028,697 18,070,680

Notes:

1. The figures in bracket indicates outflow

2. The above cash flow has been prepared under the “indirect method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As) 7 -
Statement of Cash Flows.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP

Charterad Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 301002E/E300005

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

per Naman Agarwal

Partner
Membership No.: 502405

Kishore Kumar
Director
DIN: 07143888

o

Kumar Ankit
Company Secretary
1CSI Membership
Mo, FCS 8077

GR Arun Kumar
Director
DIN - 01874769

Srikani’:\ﬁudivacﬁ

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : Aprll 27, 2017

Place: Gurugram
Date : April 27, 2017
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

1z

{1
i)

{iii}

(iv)

Share capital A% at As at As at
March 31, 20147 March 31, 2016 April 1, 20158
Number of Amount in Humber of Amaunt in Rumber of Amount in
shares Rupees shares Rupees shares Rupees
Authorised
Equity shares af Rs. 10 each with voling rights 50.000.000 500,006,000 50.000,000 500.000.000 56,000,000 504,000,050
I 1l i
Equity shares of Rs. 20 each with vating rights 32,108,000 321,060,000 32,108,000 321,080,000 32,108,000 321,080,000

32108000  321.080.000 32,108,000 323080000 _  32308.000 321.080,000

There has een no movement In the eauity share capital for the vear ended March 31. 2017 and March 31, 2018,

Details of shares held by the holding Company {including nominea) :
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2046 April 1, 2018
Number of % of Holding Number of % of Holdi Number of % of Holding
—Shares held —shareshedd . 0 sharesheld 0000000
Vedanta Limited (Formerly Sesa Stedite Limitad}, 32,108,000 EO0% 32,107,000 59.597% 32,107,000 93.957%

holding Campany

Detalts of shaves held by each shareholder holding more than §% shares :
Name of Shareholder As at As at As at
17 March 31, 2016 Aprlll, 2015
Number of % of Holding Number of % of Holding Mumber of % of Holding
shares held shares held shares held
(2) Vedanta Limited {Formerly Sesa Sterlite 32,108,000 100% 32,107,000 93.997% 32,107,000 69.907%

Lim#ted) {induding nomines)

The Company has anly one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share and dividend as and
when dedared by the company. The dividend propesed by the Board of Direciors is subject to the approval of the sharehelders In the ensuing Annuai General Meeting,
except in case of interim dividend which is pald as when dedared by Board of Directors. In the event of liguidation of the Company, holdar of equity shares will be entitled
to receive remzining assels of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in propartion to their shareholding.

(this space has been intentionalfy left hlank)




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

aa

i1

12

Non Current financial assets

Trade receivable {unsecured. considered cood)
{Also refer note 93

Dthat financlal assets

Non current

{Unsecured, considered good}

Security depesits

Current

{Unsecured, considered cond)

3} Interest acerued on deposits measured st amortised cost
b} Unbilled Revenue

¢} Ingurance ¢laim raceivable

[dY Security Depesits

Inventories

Staras and spares

Corrent Investments

Investments carsled at falr value throunh proflt and loss (FVIPLY

Trade recehables

Unsecured. considered oood

Note:

() Trade receivables from a related pasty
{Refer note 29)

Hote;

Az at A5 st ASs ot
March 31. 2017 March 1%, 2016 April 1. 2015
{Rupaag) [Rupeer) f
17,022,251 - -
As at At at As at
March 31. 2017 March 31. 2016 Aoril 1. 2015
{Rupeaas) {Rupees) [(Rupeas)
26,051,228 26053.328 175313528
1.044.816 1,082.929 -
- 1,763,246 -
. - £.906,550
11773 - .
2.846,175 B.9%6,550
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
(Bupses) (Rupees) {Rupeas)
18,890,524 43,025,402 33,081,726
As at AS at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aptil 1, 2025
{Rupeas] [(Rupesas) [(Rupeeas)
- - 251,316,207
As at As at As ot
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
{Auveas) (Rupeeas) {Runeegl
132,568,352 114.,309.517 58.246.195
97.372.665 55.550.821 3.320.054

Average credit perfod offered by the Cempany te customers i3 60 days. In case credit period Is to be extended over 60 days to any customer, prior approval
from Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer shall be obtained. In case payment is not received even after 90 days, Company may suspend the

operations on behalf of such client.

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with hanks in current accounts

Loans {unsecured, considered good)

Due from refated parties [Refer note - 29

Other Ciirrent Assets {unsecured, considered goaad)

{2} Advance ta suooliers

b} Prepald expanses

{£) Balan¢e with aovernement authorities
{di Emelovee afvances

As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
(Rupess) {Rupees) {Rupeesy
35,029,597 18.070.6B0 16,1E4,108
Ax at As at As at
March 31, 2017 Margh 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
{Rupees) {Rupees) [Rupeas)
62,252 - 127,196
Az at As at Az ot
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2018
{Rupees) [{Rupees) {Rupees)
- 526,482 -
3,096,036 4,762,764 7.858,037
21,784,582 12.050.78¢9 11.108,995
- 25,000 34,500




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

14 HNon current borrowings As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 AptH 1, 2015
{Runees) {Rapees} {Rupces)

Secured (measured at amortised cast)

{2) Redeemahle non convertible debentures - 750,000,000 3,000,000,000
[refer nate (i}]

{b) Buyers' credit from banks 1,183,757,9236 1,211,802,084 BYB,490,935
frafer noke T

{c} Term foan from banks [refer note (ivil 2,704,326,035 - -

u ured { ed at amortised cost)

{&} Liability component of cempound finandal instruments 1,377,702 2,664,381 3,855,675
{see note {ii} below)
Nan-current financial ifabilities - Borrowinas 3,889,461.673 1.954,566,455 3,902,346,610
Less: Current maturities of long term borravings {1,458,757,936) {750,000,000) {3,148,490,935)

iRefer nnte 1RIAM
Total nan-current financlzl liabilitles - Borrowinas {Nat) __2.430.763,737 ___ 1214.5€6468 IS BEE.EFF
Totel secured borrewinas (long term) 3,H88,082,971 1.,961,902,084 3,898.490.935
Total unsecured borrowinas (lona term) 1,377,702 2.664.281 3,855,675
Potes:

(i)

L

(it}

(v}

The Company had issued 9% Secured Non Convertlble Debentures ("NCDs™)’ of Rs, 1,000,000 each to IDFC Limited (the *arcanget™, in the month of May,
2013 amounting to Rs. 300 Crare for refinancing of rupee term loan and for other general corporate purposes. The NCDYs were redeemable ak the end of
the 3 years from the date of allotment i.2. May 8, 2013, with an earlier redemption of these debentures by way of axerdgising put and call optlon at the end
af 2nd year L 8 May, 2015. Cn May 8, 2015 debenturas holders excersised the put option to the extent of Rs. 225 Crore and the same amount has heen
eald to debeatuere holders, The balance Rs. 75 Crore has heen oald on Mav &, 2018,

Liabllity companent of compaound fitancial Instruments represent the amortised cost of amounts payable on 1,500,D00(Nas) 0.1% Unsecured Compulsority
Convertible Debentures (*CCLs*Y of Rs, 1,000 each issued by the Company to Vedanta Limited {the "Subseriber*). The CCDs were allotted to the Subseriber
on March 28, 2011 at Rs. 650 culled wp per CCD and the balance Rs. 350 was calied upan during the year ending March 31, 2012, At the end of the 7th
year from the date of allotment each of the CCDs shall be compulsorily convertible ito equity shares of the Company of Rs. 11.10 each i.e. each CCD shall
be converted into 90 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a premiuvm of Re. 1.10 per share.

Convertible debenturgs consists of [Rabilty and equity aiemants. The €quity slements is presented in other equity as deemed equity contribution. Uability
element was initially recagnised at fair value using a £.00% per annum discount rate.

Amount
— {Runeeg}
Proceeds of issue 1.500.000.000
Liability component at the date of issye
Equity Component 1,492 180,032

As an April 1, 2015, Buyer credit was secured by (I a first pavi passu floating charge / assignment of all revanues and receivables of the Company from
the Project or otherwise; (i) first par] passu flsating charge on =l the Company's immovable and movable assets {exduding Project Site as defined in
Concession Agreement (CA)); {lil) a first parl passu floating charge on ali intanglble assets {other than project site as defired In CA) including but nat
fimited {o the goodwil, undertaking, uncalled cepital, and Intellectual Property Rights of the Company; (iv) a first parl passu Aoating charge on the Escrow
Aceount {v) Secured by Corporate Guarantee of the Vedanta Limited {Formerly Sesa Sterlite Umited) which was valid till the tenure af the Buyers credst
facility. Charge on assets was governed by terms of Concession agreement (CA).

On May 29, 2015, the Company refinanced the buyers credit and rolled over the buyers credit for 2 more years { Le. from 3 years ta 5 years) after
consldering the ABI Guidelines for Infrastructure companies, Buyers credit is further securad by corporate gurantee provided by Vedanta Limited.

The reke of interest on buyers credit ranges fram 2.07% to 2.49% [2015-16 ranges from 1.45% to 2.24%). Repayment of Buyers Cradit can be made at
any time during the t2nure of the agreement (i.a between May 29, 20315 and May 28, 20170,

©n July 11, 2015, term lean of Rs.275 Crore has been obtained at an interest rate of 9.70% . The kan is repayahle in 10 equal sermi annpal instalments
beginning January 2018 i.e. after 1 year moratoriem from date of draw down, Loan |5 secured by

{a) uncanditlonat and Irrevocable corporate guraniee of Yedanka Limited;

(b} First pari passu charge on all movable and inmovable fixed assets with a minimum cover of 1.25x;

{c} Vedanta Eimited and Sesa Resources Limited to create third pary charge on dividend of Hindustan Zinc Limited and Caim India Limited ;

{d} First pari oassu charae with other term lenders on profect assets.




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMETED
Notes forming part of the financinl statements ss at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

15 Other lisbilitles AS at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
{Rupees) (Rupees) {Rupees)

fon Current
{2] Deferred aovernment arant [refer note i1 betow1 314,200,700 328,248,940 — 342,217,337
Current
(a) Statutory liabitties 10,440,197 8,218,915 7.222.912
(b1 Advance fram customers 16.153.768 20.578.700 800.000
{¢] Deferced aovernment arant refer note 1i} below] 13.958.485 13.968.054 13,560,054
td} tiability for Unpald Waaes 3,212,176 - -

—. 37,764,636 ___ 42.765.669 _ 21990966

(i} The Company has acquired certain plant and machinery on 3 concessional rate of duty as against which it hes undertzken to make exports. The
government grant is released to the statement of profit and luss on a systematic basis over a period of time,

16 Corrent Borrowings Ax at Az at As at
March 31, 2D17 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
{Rupees) {Rupees) (Rupees)
Secured (measured at amortised cost)
{a) Buyers cradit from banks - - 245,042,982
[Far secucity meated on Buvers Credit refer nnte 147101
Unsecured {measured at amortised cost)
(2} Loan from related party 77,560,000 1,935,000,0G0 -

Veranta {imited frefer note helow}

77,500,000

1 L] 1]

245,042, 982

Note: The Gompany obtained inter-corporte loan of Rs. 225 Crore from Vedanta Limied (Formerly Sesa Sterfite Limited) on May 8, 2015 ta honour put
option exercised by the NCD debentures holders to the tune of Rs, 225 Crore on May 8, 2015, The interest rate on above 130 15 9% p.a. The lan Is

repavable on demand,

17 Trade payables As at Az at Az at
March 21. 2017 Mareh 31. 2016 Anril 1. 2015
[Rupees) {Rupees] {Rupees)
(2] Trade pavables 73,565 740 Z8275.15) _______¥2,042083
Note 13 There are no amounts due to micro and small enkerprises,
Note 2: Trade pavables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 30 davs terms.
18 Other current financizl liabilities Az at As at As at
March X1. 2017 March 31, 2016 Aoril 1, 2015
{Rupess) {Rupees) {Rupeps)

(a) Current maturities of lona term borrowinas {refer note belew)

(B} Interest acrrued byt not due on borrowinas 26,249,388 63,411,255 242,877,078
{1 Financial instruments derivatives 77.898,145 11.699.852 95.988.476
{d) Pavebles for capltal aoods 307459 307.449 16,946.395
{e} Due to related parties {refer note - 20Y 16,058,930 46,166,557 15,323.164
N Security deposlt from vesdors 6.14%.800 5,078,255 3.797.166
{q) Royalty (payable to ¥ishakhagatnam Port Trust) 145,767,152 409,395,126 52,715,309
231,170,810 526,063,594 3.5765.148.523
Note:
Current makurities of lang term borrowinas comorises of:
[Also refer note 14)
~ Byyars' credit from banks 1.183.757.936 - 898,450,935
= Redeamable Hon Convertible Debentures - 750,000,000 2,25¢.000.000
= Term Loan from banks 275,000,000 - -
1,458 767936 750,000,000 3,148 400 035
19 Pravisions As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
[Ruppes) {Rupees) {Rupeas)
fa) Provision for emplovee benefits (nat)
- Pravislon for compensated absences 5,698.587 3.620,335 3.645.403
= Provislon for aratulty {refer note 28} 895,394 2.631.099 1.835.622
—_—T503881, 6351438 . 2 5484020

1.458.757.936

750,000,009

3.148.4901,935




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming pact of the financial statements as at and for the year anded March 31, 2017

20 Revenue from operations Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{Rupees) {Rupees)

{a} Sale of services
- Income from port operations 1,057,468,956 1.701,582,872

{b} Other operating ravenues
- Liabilities / provisions na longer reguired written back 8,262,550

~ Scrap <ales 48,457 2,136,964

1,057,517,413 1,711,982 426

Note - Revenue from twe customers amounting to Rs. 253,985,503 and Rs. 428,565,504 (March 31, 2016 : Rs. 461,152,021 and Rs.
773,045,459} individually exceeded 10% of the fotal revenue of company.

21 Other tncome Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{Rupeas) [Rupees}
{2} Fair value gain on financial assets carried at FVTPL 823,893 3,458,348
{b) Interest incemne from financial assets measured at amortised costs 4,259,760 1,203,254
{c) Liquidation damaqes 137,228 1,237,673
(d) Net gain on farelgn currency transactions and translation Tt = 380,754
{e) Government grant (refer note 15) 13,968,052 13,968,054
{f} Miscellaneous income - 762,552
125138!933 2150105635
22 Employee benefits expense Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
{Rupees) {Rupees)
{a} Salaries and Wages 45,931,999 54,358,320
(b} Share based payment to emplovees {refer note 27) (2,993,718 2,771,619
{c) Contributions to provident and other funds {refer note 28) 3,059,909 3,623,645
{d} Staff welfare expenses 5,663,461 4,713,928

51,661,651 65 467,512

23 Finance Cost Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 24, 2016
{Rupees) {Rupees)
{a) Interest axpense on financial liabilities at amortised cost 309,083,625 280,726,109
{b) Other borrowing costs 16 076,475 18,935,629

325,160,100 299,664,738

(this space has been intentionally left blank)




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes foarming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

24 Other Expenses Year ended Yaar ended
March 31. 2017 March 31. 2016
{Rupees) (Rupeas)
(a} Consumption of stores and spare parts 19,786,455 29,982,611
{h) Repairs and maintenhance 10,012,122 8,561,315
{c) Power and fuel 67,914,794 97,896,011
{d) Material handling expenses 30,745,517 35,370,048
{e) Demmurage charqes - 3,475,371
{f] Port operation and maintenance expenses 57,479,620 64,150,980
{a} License fees for land 32,594,042 8,390,663
fh} Legal and professional 13,657,851 13,786,570
(i} Payment to auditors {refer naote below) 1,122,000 1,088,000
(i) Security expenses 9,193,728 B.250,536
(k) Insurance 6,273,973 8,503,182
(1} Travelling and conveyance 4,970,724 4,021,753
{rn} Rates and taxes 3,508,570 3,060,828
{n) Directors sitting fees 400,000 420,000
{o) Loss on Sale of Fixed assets {net} 53,636,429 -
{p) Net loss on foreian currency transactions and translation 503,148 -
{g) Miscelianeous expenses 8,561,072 14,366,176

320,397,046 302,334,048

Nota:

(a) Payment to auditers

- For statutory audit {including guaterly reviews) 750,000 750,000
- For cther services 165,000 125,000
- For certification services 190,000 200,000
- Reimbursement of expenses 17,000 13,000

1,122,000 1,088,000

{b) The Campany was not required to spend any amounts on Corporate Social Respons|bility (CSR) activities. The total actuat expenditure on
CSR avtivities is also nil.

{this space has been intentionafly left blank)




VIZAG GENERAL CARGD BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financlal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

25 Earnings per share {(EPS):
units As at

gasle earnings per share {BEPS)

a. Net (loss)/proflk after tax attributable to eguity sharehalders for BEPS RLpees {455,252.359)
b. Nominal value per share Rupees 10
[ Number of eguily shares for BEPS Mo. of shares 32,148,000
a, Basi¢ earmninas per share Rupaas {14.18)
Har i :
a. Net (loss)/profit after tax atfributable to equity shareholders for DEPS 2 Rupees {455,252,358)
b. Nominal value per share Rupeeas 0
€. Number of egulty shares for DEPS * No. of shares 32,108,000
a, Diluted earninas per share Rupees (14.18)
Mote:

Ax at

March 31. 2012 _March 31. 20716

10.435.263

i0

32,108,000
0.33

10,648,587
10
167,108,000
8.06

1 For the year ended March 31, 2017, the basic earnings per share and the diluted earnings per share are the same as the compuisary

convertible debenturas have an antidllutive impact.

2 Net proflt after tax attributable to ecuity shareholders for BEPS Rupaes {455,252,359) 10,435,263
Add: Interest on compulsory convertibie debentures Rupees 213,324 213,324
Net profit after tax attributable bo equity shareholders for DEPS Rupees (455 039.035) 10,648,587
3 Number of equity shares for BEPS No. of shares 32,108,000 32.198.000
Add: Effact of compulsary convertible debentures Na. of shares 135,060,000 135,000,000
Number of eqguity shares for DEPS No. of shares 167,108,000 167,108,000

{this space fas been Intenticnally feft blank)




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

26

27

Contingent liabilities, Commitments and others:

As at As at

{Rupees) (Rupees)

Contingent Lability:

The Company has received an order from the commissioner of Central 50,005,404 -
Excise Customs & Service tax dated March 20,2017 for payment of service

tax liability on actount of incorrect availment of service tax credit on

impugned capital goods and taxability of Berth hire charges In the hands of

the Company during year 20i3-14,

Management considers these demands as not tenable against the company

and therefcre no provision for tax contingencies has been considered

necessary.

Claim against the <Company neot acknowledged as debt- 43,967,744 -
The Company has received correspondence from Vishakapatnam Port Trust

(VPT) dated April 11,2016 claiming that the area of land under occupation

of the Company is higher than the area on which rent is being paid by the

company o VPT.

The management belleves that rent liability is being discharged on the

actual area occupied. It is in the process of obtaining independent land
survey report done , pending which no provision for additional liability has

been made,

Other Commitments
Export Obligation :

The company has export obligation of Rs. 3,075,385819 (March 31,2016 Rs. 3,075,385,819) on account of
concessional rates of impert duties paid on capital goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme enacted by
the Government of Indla which is to be fulfilled over a period of & - 8 years from the date of purchase. If the company
is unable to meet these obligations, it would be liable for payment of duty of Rs. 385,167,327 {(March 31, 2016 Rs.
385,167,327) plus interest which have not been provided for as the Company beliaves it has a resonable possibility of
meeling these obligations.

Share based compeansation plans

The Company offers equity-based award plans to its employees, officers and directors through its parent, Vedanta
Resources Plc [Vedanta Resources Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP"), Employee Share Ownership Plan ("ESOP") and
Performance Share Plan ("PSP”}] collectively refered as 'VR PLC ESOP' scheme and Vedanta Limited [Vedanta Limited-
Employee Stock Option Scheme ("Vedanta Limited-ESOS™)].

During the year, share-based incentives under VR PLC ESQP scheme and ESOS of Vedanta Limited(introduced effective
December 2016) are provided ko the defined management group. The maximum value of shares that can be awarded
to members of the defined management group is calculated by reference to the individual fixed salary and share-based
remuneration consistent with local market practice. ESOP scheme of VR Plic and Vedanta limited are both tenure and
performance based share schemes. The awards are indexed to and seitled by Parent shares(Vedanta Resources Plc
shares or Vedanta Lid shares as defined in the scheme).The awards have a fixed exercise price denominated in Parent's
functionai currency (10 US cents per share in case of Vedanta Resources Pic and Re.l in case of Vedanta Limited), the
performance period of each award Js three years and is exercisable within a period of six months from the date of
vesting heyond which the option lapse.

Further, in accordance with the terms of the agreement between the Parent and the Company, the cost recognized
towards ESOF scheme is recovered by the parent from the Company.
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Notes forming pait of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

28

(N

{it)

Emnlovee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Gompany makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the schems, the Company is
reguired to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company has recognised Rs.1,686,178 (Previous year
Rs. 1,777,826) for Provident Fund contributions in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

The Company has recognised Rs. 547,472 {Previous year RE, 1,263,492) for Superannautation Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Central provident fund

In accordance with the The Employess Provident Fund and Miscellanasus Provisions Act, 1952, employees are entitled to receive benefits under
the Provident Fund Scheme. Both the employee and the empleyer make monthly cantributions to the plan at a predetermined rate (12% for
fiscal year 2017 and 2016} of an employ=e's basic salary. Al employees have an option to make additional voluntary contributions. These
contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Governmant of India {GOT). The Company has no further obligations under
the fund managed by the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of profit and loss In the period they are
incurred,

Superannuation

Superannuation, another pension scheme applicable in India, is applicable only to senjor executives, The Company holds a policy with Life
Insurance Corporation of Indla {*LEC"), to which the Company contributes a fixed amount relating to superannuation and the penslon annuity is
met by LIC as required, taking Into consideration the contributions made. The Company has no further obligations under the schema bayond its
monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period they are incurred.

Dafined benefit plans
Gratuity plan

In accordance with the Payment of Gratulty Act of 1972, the Company contributes to a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan®) for employees
who have completed 5 years of service. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees af retirement, disability or
termination of employment being 2n amount based on the respective employea’s last drawn salary and the number of years of empleyment with
the Company.The gratuity plan is a funded plen and the company makes contributien to recegnized funds in Indla.

Based on actuarial valuations conducted as at year end, a provision is recognised in full for the benefit abligation over and above the funds held
in the Gratuity Pfan.

Principal actuartal assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Year enderd
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Discount Rate 7.60% 2%
Expected rate of increase in campensation level of covered emplovees 15% 15%
Expected retures on plan asset 8.75% B.75%
Retirernent age GR veare 58 vears

In Service Mortality 1ALM (2006-08) IALM {2006-08)

Withdrawal rates for:-

0 to 12 years 3% 3%
12 to 26 vears 2% 2%
26 to 40 vears 1% 1%
Amount of oblioation recognised ins the balance sheet consists of:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{(Rupess} {Rupees)
Fair value of plan assets 2.870,957 2.072.225
Present value of defined benefit obligations (3,766,351) (4,703,324}
[895,394) (2,631,000}
.?‘E@“x
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Emplovesa benefits

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plan are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 3%, 2016
(Rupees) ——{Rupees)
Current: service cost 673,393 475,929
Intarest expensas on plan liabilities 340,748 249 597
Expected return on plan assets {187,882) (143,199}
826,259 582,327
Amounts recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income in respect of defined benefit plan are as follows:
. N P Year ended ¥Year ended
Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{(Rupees) aag
Actuarial loss/{gain) arising fraom changes in financlal assumption 246,894 (136,722)
Actuarial (oain)floss arising from changes in experience adjustment {1,310.066) 1.273.919
Return on Flan asset excluding net interest {50,617} (26,540)
Components of defined benefit costs recognized In other cormprehensive Income (1,113,789} 1,110,657
The movement in present value of the defined benefit obflgation is as follows;
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(Rupees) [Rypggs)
Balance at start of the year 4,703,324 3,542,947
Current service cast £73,383 673,393
Interast cost 340,748 249,597
Benefits paid {BB7,942) (702,346}
Artuarial {gain)floss arising from changes in fnancial assumption 246,394 (136,722}
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from chanqges In experience adiustment {1,310,068) 1.076 455
Balance at end of vear 3,766,351 4,703,324
Movemnent in the falr value of plan assets is as follows:
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Balance at start of the vear 2,072,225 1,704,325
Adiustrments to opening fair value of plan assets {7.630) 76,326
Contribution received 1,455,805 806,595
Intarast income 187,882 143,199
Remeasurment gain arising from return on plan assets 50,617 43,726
Benefits paid (B87.942) {702,348)
Bzlance at the end of year 2,870 957 2,072,225
% allocation of plan assets
Assets by category Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 21, 2016

Life insurance corporation of india 1009%

100%

In absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with LIfe Insurance Corporation of India, the compesition of each
major category of plan assets and the percentage or amount for each major category to the fair vaiue of total plan assets has not been

discloged.

The actuarlal return on plan asgets was Rs.50,617 for the year ended March 31,2017 and Rs.26,540 for year ended March 31,2016.

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 18,60

The company expects o congribute Rs. 355,331 to the funded defined benefit plen in fiscal year 2018.

Sensitivity analysis

17.83

Below 1s the sensitivity analysis determined For significant actuariai assumptions for the determination of defined benefit obligations and
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurrlng at the end of the reporting period while holding all other

assumptions constant.
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2% Emplovee benefits

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Discount rate
PY0 at the end of period (Discount rate - 0.5% ) 4,107,244 5,086,787
PVO at the end of period {Discaunt rate - 0.25% ] 3,932,068 4,894,687
PVO at the end of period Discount rate 3,766,351 4,703,324
PVO at the end of period (Discount ratz + 0.25% ) 3,609.518 4,522,078
PVQ at the end of period {Discount rate + 0.5% ) 3,461,034 4,358,219
Expected rate of increase in compensation level of coverad empfovees
PVO at the end of periad (Salary Increase - 0,25% ] 3,727,786 4,612,480
RYO at the end of period Salary increase 3,766,351 4,703,324
PYO at the end of period {Salary Increase + 0.25% ) 3,799,320 4,785,295
Return of planned assets
Fair value of plan assets -Expected rate -0.5% 2,855,214 2,063,060
Fair value of plan assets -Expected rate -0.25% 2,865,086 2,067,642
Fair value of plan assets - Base rate 2,870,957 2,072,225
Fair value of plan assets -Expectad rate +0.25% 2,876,828 2,078,807
Fair value of plan assets -Expected rate +0.5% 2,882,700 2,081,390

The above sensitivity analysls may not be representative of the actual berefit obligation as it is unlikety that the change in assumptions
would occur in isalation of one another as some of the assumptions rmay be correlated.

In presenting the above sensitivity analysls, the present value of defired benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of reporting pericd, which is the same as that applied In calculating the defined chligation fiabllity recognized in the
balance sheet.

Risk analysis
Company is exposed to 2 number of risks in the defined beneflt pians. Most significant risks pertaining to defired benefits plans and
management estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Investment risk
Defined banefit plans are funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). Company does not have any liberty to manage the fund
provided &0 LIC.

The present valug of the defined benefik plan iiabllity is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to Government of India
boends . If the return on plan asset is below this rate, i witl create 2 plan deficit.

Irterest risk
A decrease In the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.

Longevity risk/ Life expectancy
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortelity of plan participants both
during and at the end of the employment, An increase In the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability,

Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan tiability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of Plan participants. An increase in the
salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability,

(this space has been intentionally feft blank}
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29 Related partv transactions

{a) List of related parties and relationships

in

(i}

Uitimate holding cormpany
Volean Investments Limited
Holding company:

Vedanta Limited (Farmeriy Sesa Sterlite Limited)

{iii) Fellow subsidiaries

- Bharat Aluminium Company Limited

- Talwandi Sabo Private Limited

- Maritime Ventures Private Umited

- Black Mountzin Mining (Propristary) Limibed

(b) Details of related party transactions {Excluding taxes, appliable if any) and balances outstanding as at year end are as stated
batow.

Transactions during the year

fiy

(i

(i

fiv)

vl

{v)

Short-term borrowings taken during the vear
« Yedanta Lirnited (Formery Sesa Sterlite Limited)

Short~term borrowlnas repaid during the vear
- Vedanta Limited {Formerly Sesa Sterlite Limited)

Incomne from oot operations *

- Vedanta Limited {Formerly Seca Sterlite Linlted}
- Bharat Aluminium Company Lirnited

- Maritime Ventures Private Limlted

Services taken from
- Vedanta Limited (Formerty Sesa Sterfite Limited}

Emplovee benefit expenses {refundedy/charqed by*
- Veadanta Limited (Formerly Sesa Sterite Limited}
- Talwandi Sabuo Private Limited

Employee benefit expenses charged to *

- Vedanta Limited {Formerly Sesa Sterlite Limited}
- Maritime Ventures Private Limited
- Talwand| Saboo Private Limited

{vil} Finance cost charged by Yedanta Limited (Formerly Sesa Sterlite

Limited) ¥

- Interest an debanturgs measured at amortised cost
- Other barrowlng costs

- Inberest on short term borrowings

{vill} Reimbursement of expenses to/{from) met*

{ix)

(x1

[$.4)]

* Details of related party transactions are regorted by excluding taxes, if any

= Talwand] Saboo Private Limited

- Vedanta Limited {Fermerly Seca Sterllte Limited)
- Maritime Venturegs Private Limited

- Sterlite Port Limited

Financial qurantees taken during the vear
- Yedanta Limited (Formerly Sesa Sterlite Limited)

Financlal qurantees refinauished during the vear
- Vedanta Limited (Formerly Sesa Sterlite Umited}

Sitting fees
- To Kev Manavement Personnel

2,645,000,000

522,000
757,900
428,565,504

12.993.718)
72,735

1.806.768
4.147.488
74,835

213,335
8.670.454
65,220,616

20,601
[664.365)

172.462

2,750,000,000

750.000.000

400.000

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31. 2016
{Rupees) {Rupees}
787,500,000 2.250.000.000

315.000.000

580.854
1.586.915
773.045.459

823.865

2,771.619

-

376,548
2,880.517
435.894

308.707
7.103.185
169.187.671

136,288
4,135,219
7.261.576

1.256.000. 004

3.890.000.000

420.000
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26 Related party transactions

Qutstanding balance at vear end

As at As at As 2t
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aoril 01, 2015
{Rupeas) [Rupens) {Rupeeas)
{I} Uability camponent of compound financial instrements
- Vedanta Limited (Formerly Sesa Sterlite Limlted) - Liabtllky 1,377,702 2,664,381 3,855,675
component of compound financkal instruments (See note 16 for
seririty created and terms of renavmeantl
{liy Short term borrewings
- Vedanta Limited (Formerly Sesa Sterlita Limitad) - Short term 77,500,000 1,935,000,000 -

borrowings (See note 16 for security created and terms of repayment)

{lii} Corporate Guarantee issued on Company's behalf by

- Vedanta Limlted {Formerly Sesa Sterlite Limited) 4,582,351.500

{l¥} Other current flnancial |labiiitiss
- Vedanta Limited (Formerly Sesa Sterlite Limitad)
- Maritime Ventures Private Limited
- Talwand! Saboo Private Limited

15,999,350
59,580

{v} Other receivables
- Vedanta Limited {Formerly Sesa Sterllte Limited) 62,255
- Black Mountain Mining (Proprietany) Limited -
(vi] Trade receivables
- Vedanta Limited {Farmerly Sesa Sterllte Limited)

- Maritime Ventures Private Limited 97.372.661

Terms and conditions of {ransactions with related parties

4.582.351,500

46.930.674

135,883

652,800
55.550.821

5.222,351.,500

3,864,106
11.455.058

127.195

3.320.054

340

All transactions with related parties arge made in ordinary course of business. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related
parly receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31 2017, the company has not recorded any impairment of receivables retating to
amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial positlon of the related party
and the market in which the related party onerates.

Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2017 are indicated below:

Year ended Year ended
March 31. 2017 March 31, 2016
{Rupees) {Rupees)
Deferred tax liability arising on temparary differences 92,688,808 160,941,620
92,689,898 160,941,520

A reconciilation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profits before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised income tax
expense for the year indicated are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31. 2016
{Rupees) {Rupees)
Net (Loss)/Gain before tax (3682,562,461) 171,376,883
Statutory tax rate 34.61% 34.61%
Tax at statutory income tax rate (125,475,616) 28,310,112
Deffared tax on accelerated dapreciation undar income tax 82,689,828 25,663,755
Qther adjustments - 3,927,203
Tax logses and depreciation reversing during tax heliday seriod 125,475,616 64,094,266
Change in deffered tax balances due te change [n Income tax rate from 33.99% to 34.61% - 7,946,284
Tax charge for the yvear 92,689,398 160,941,620

Sectoral Benefit - Port Operations

To encourage the astablishment of infrastructure , ports have been offered income tax exemptions of upto  100% of profits and gains for any ten
consecutive years within the 15 year period following commencement of operations subject to certain conditions. However,such undertzkings

would conflnue to be subject to MAT provisions.
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30 Income tax

QEfnged tax ligbilitigs
The deferred tax lablllty represents accelarsted tax relief for the depreciation of property plant and equipment and the amortisation of Intanglble

assets and gain on the fair valuation of sutwal fund. Significant compenents of llabllity recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

Asat March 31, 2017 {all amounts in rupees)
Significant components of Opening Charged [ Charged/ ‘Tatal aF at
deffered tax liabilities April 01, 2016 {credited) to (credited) to OCI March 31, 2017
Statement of profit
or loss
- Property, plant and equipment 598,638,021 52,689,898 - 601,527,919
and intangible assets
598 R38,071 92,589,808 - 681,527,919
Asat March 21, 2016 (alt amounts in rupees)
Significant components of Opening Charged / Charged/ Total as at
deffered tax Habilities April 01, 2015 (eredited) to {credited} to OCI March 31, 2016
Starement of profit
ot loss
Property, plant and equipment 437,045,572 161,792,088 - 598,838,021
aru intangible assets -
Fair valuation of mutual fund 850,468 {850,468) - -
437,896,040 160,941,620 - 598,838,021

{this space has been intentionaily left blank}
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31 Financial Instruments

{a) Financial rick management ochjective and pallties
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Campany and provides additional information on the balance sheet, Details of
sighificant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which Income and expenses are recegnised, in
respect of each class of financial asset, finandal liability and equity instrument are disciosed in note 3.
Financlal assets and Habilities:

The accounting classification of each category of financiat insiruments, and their carrying amounts, are sat out balow:

Asat March 21, 2017 {all amounts in rupees)
Financial assets FVTPL FYTOCE Amotised Cost Total carrying value Total falr value
Cash and cash equivalents - - 35,028,597 35.028.597 35,028,557
Trade receivables - - 149,590,703 149,580,702 149,500,703
Security deposits - - 26,051,228 26,051,228 26,051,228
Loans - - 52,252 62,252 62,252
Other current financial asset - - 1,156,589 1,156,589 1,155,589
- . 211,889,369 211,889,360 211,880,369
Financial Habilities EVTPL FVTOCE Ampotised Cost Total carrying value Total falr value
Borrowinas : - - 3.0966.961,673 3,866,951.673 4,043,421,451
Trade pavables - - 73,965,740 73.965.740 73,965,740
Other current financial llabilities 77,898,145 - 194 523,729 273.421.8974 272,421,874
77,898,145 - 4,235,451,142 4,313,349 .287 4,389.808,065
As at March 31, 2016 {all amounts in rupees)
Financiat assets FVTPL FVTOLCY Amotised Cost Total carrying value Total fair value
Cash and cash equivalents - - 18.070.680 18.070.680 18,070,680
Trade receivables - - 114,309,517 114,306,517 114,309,517
Security deposits - . 26,061,228 26,051,228 26,051,228
Other current financial asset - - 2. 846,375 2,846,175 2,846,175
d - 161,377 600 161,277 600 1&1.277 600
Financial liabilities FVTPL FVTOCI Amotised Cost Total carrying value Total falr value
Borrowings - - 3.8589.566.465 3.899.566.465 3,895,506,465
Trade pavables - - 74,275,151 74,275,151 74,275,151
Other current financial liabiiities 11.69%. 852 | 164,363,742 176,063,594 175,063,554
11.59% 852 - 4,138 205,358 4,143 905,210 4,149 905.210
As at Apnl 01, 2015 {Amount in Rupees)
Financial assets FVTPL FVTOCI Amotised Cost Total carrying value Tatal fair value
Cash and cash eaulvalents - - 16,184,108 15,184,108 16,184,108
Current investments 751,316,207 - - 251.316.207 251,316,207
Trade and other racaivables . - 62,246,195 £8.246,155 68,246,195
Loans - - 127,196 127,196 127,186
Security deposits - - $7.513,528 17,513,528 17,513,528
Other current financial asset - - 9,906,550 4,905,550 8,906,550
251,316,207 - Lid. 837 577 262.293784 36%,4%3.784
Financial liabilitles FVTPL EVTOCI Amotised Cost Total carrying value Total fair value
Lang term borrowings - - 4,147,385,502 4,147,.389,502 4,147,389,592
Trade payables - - 72.042.083 72.042.083 72,042,083
Cther current financial liabilities 85,988 476 - 331,669,312 427,657,588 427,657,588
95.988.476 - 4.551,160,787 4.647,089,263 4.647.089,263

{b} Ealr valus hiararchy

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by waluation technique-
Leve! 1: guoted prices {unadjustad} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level 1 thet are observable for the assel or liabitity, either direckly
{i.e., as prices} or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liahility that are not based on obsarvable market data {unobservable inputs)

The beiow table summarises the categories of financial assets and lisbifities as at March 31,2017 , March 31,2016 and April 01,2015

As at_March 31, 2017 (all amounts In rupees)
Level Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilities
- Derivative financial liabitities - 77.858,145 - R
e ey
As at March 31, 2016 {al amounts in rupees) Laigs G
& i
Levell Leve] 2 tevel 3 / & ‘.;g
Financial Liabilities £ -
- Derivative financial Gabilities . 11.699.852 - ‘\ & g
=
As at_April 01, 2015 {all amounts in rupees) N Mﬁ;
“\',té‘ﬁ ey &
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 \"'QM—) v
Financtal assels R

= Current investments 251.216.207 - -
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FInancial Instruments (Cont.)

The fair value of the financial assets and labilities are at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assurmplions were used to estimate the fair values.

Short-term marketable securities not traded in active markets are determined by reference to quotes from the financlal institutions; for example; Met asset value
(MAY) For investments in mutuad funds declared by mutuai fund house. (2 Level 1 technique)

Derivative contracts: The Company enters Into derivative financial instruments with varicus ¢ounterparties, principally financial institutions with investment grade
credit ratings, Forward foreign curreney contracts are valued using valuation techniques with mariet observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation
techniques for such derivatives include foreign exchange spot and Forward premium rates. (a Level 2 technique)

There is no financlal instrument which is classified as fevel 3 during the year. There were no transfers between level L, tevel 2 and level 3 during the year,

The Management assessed fair value of cash & cash squivalents, trade recaivables, security deposits, Joans, trade payables and other current financial essets and
liabilities 25 their book values because of their short term maturities.

(c) Risk mapagement framework
The company's businesses are subject to several risks and uncertainties in<iuding financial risks. The Company's documented risk management polices act a5 an
effective tool in mitigating the various financial risks to which the business is exposed to in the course of their dally operations. The risk management policies
cover areas such as Bquidity risk, interest rate risk, counterparty and concentration of credit risk and capltal management, Risks are identifled through a formal
risk management programme with active involvement of senior management personnel and business managers.Each sigaificant risk has a designated ‘owner’
within the company at an appropriate senior level. The potential financial Impact of the risk and its likelihnod of a negative outcome are regularly updated.
The risk management process |s coordinated by the Management Assurance function and is regularly reviewed by the Company's Audit Committee, The overall
intarnal control enviranment and risk management programme including financial risk management Is reviewed by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board.
The risk management framework aims to:
- improve financtal risk awareness and risk transparency
- identify, control and monitar kay risks
- identlfy risk accumulations
- provide management with reliable information on the Company's risk situation
- improve financial returns
Treasury management
The Company's treasury function pravides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitars and manages
the financial risks relating to the operatiuns of the Company throtgh internal risk reports which analyses axposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks
include market risk (including currency risk and Interest rabe risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cashilow risk.
Treasury management focuses an capital protection, liquidity maintenance and yield maximization. The Company’s treasury policies are within the framework of
the overall Holding Company's treasury policies and adherence to these policies is strictly monitored at the Executiva Committee meatiags. Long-term fund raising
including strategic treasury initistives are handled with the help of central treasury team. A menthly reperting system exists to inform senlor management of
investments, debt and currency derivatives. Tha company has a strong system of Internal contro! which enables effective monitoring of adherence to company’s
policies, The internat control measures are effectively supolemented by regular internal audits,
Financial rishk
The Company's Board approved financial risk policles comprise liquidity, foreign currency, interest rate and counterparty credit risk. The Company does nok
engage In specutative treasury activity but seeks to manage risk and optimize Interest thraugh proven financial instruments,

() Liguidity risk

The Company requires funds both for short-term aperational needs as well as for investment purpases. The Company has been rated by CRISIL Limited (CRISIL)
for its banking facilitles in ilne with Basel If norms. During the year, CRISIL revised the rating of the Company's long-tenm bank facilities from CRISIL AA-
(S0O)/Stable to CRISIL AA-[SO)/Fositive.

The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy linuidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening the balance sheet. The maturity profile of the

Company's financiai llabiiities based on the rémaining period from the date of balance sheet to the eontractual maturity date is given in the table below. The
figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash obfigation of the Company.

As at March 31, 2017

Payment Due by Year <] year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Barrowings * 1,823,410,749 1,476,884,863 1,263,119,452 ' 282,381,30t 4,845,796,365
Traf:ig payables and other financiat 242,240,079 ) B . 242,240,079
liabilites **
Derivatives financial liabilities 77,898,145 - - . 77,898,145
Total 2,143,548,973 1!4755834!853 1!26351 195452 282;381I301 5,165,934,589
As at March 21, 2016

<1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Yaars > 5 Years Total
Borrowings ¥ 2,748,411,255 1,214,5668,465 - 3,962,997,720
'l_‘raflfa pay:bles and other financial 175,227,638 . ) ,,—;;rj——‘?..\;\ 175,227,638
liabilites * A, Lalge @;\»
Derivatives financial liabillties 11,699,852 - q?'yu\\g& \ 11,695,052

[mid e
Total 2,035, 338,745 1,214, 566,465 15 Frres T o7 4,149,905,210
= X ety o
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Financial Instruments (Cont.)

As at April 01, 2015

<1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Tatal
Batrowings * 3,636,410,595 753,855,675 - - 4,390,266,670
“Trade payablas and other financial .
(iabifkes 160,834,117 - - 160,834,117
Derlvatives financiat liabilities 95,988,476 - - - : 95,988,476
Total 3,853,233,588 753,855,675 - - 3,647,089,263

*Includes Non-current borrowings, current borrowings, current maturities of non-current barrowings and committed interest paymants.

**Incledes both Non-current and current financial liabilities, excludes current maturities of noa-current borrewings derivatives and cornmitted interest payments
on borrowings,

The Campany had 2ccess to fallowing funding facilities :
As at March 31, 2017
{all amounts in rupees)

iotal Facility Drawn Undrawn
less than one year 1,183,757,835 1,183,757,936 "
mare than two year 2,950,000,000 2,508,087,774 40,912,226
Total 4,133,757,236 4,092,845,710 AD, 912,226

As at March 31, 2016
{all amounts in rupees)

Total Facility Drawn Undrawn
one to two year 1,211,902,084 1,211,802,084 -
more than two year 200,000,000 159,087,774 40,912,226
Total 1,411,902,084 1,370,989,858 40,912,225

As at April 01, 2015
(all amounts in rupees)

Jotal Facility Drawn Undrawn
One to two year 1,640,000,000 1,143,533,916 456,466,084
more than two year 200,000,000 144,587,774 55,412,226
Total 1,5840.000,000 1,28E,121,5890 ;51,878,310

llateral i
Details of securities for the borrowing facilities availed by the Campany are as beiow:

The company has pledged its trade receivable in order to fulfll the collateral requirements, The counter parties have an obligation to return the securitles to the
company. There are no other significant terms and conditions associated with the use ot collaterals.

Forel .

Fareign exchange risk comprises of the risk that may arise to the Compeny because of fluctuations in forelgn currency exchange rates. Fluctuations In fareign
currency exchange rates may have an impact on the statements of profit or loss and statement of change In equity where any transaction references mare than
one currency or whers assets/liabilities are danominated in a currency other than the functianal currency of the Company. As on March 31, 2017, the Cempany is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the buyer's credit denominated in foreign currency pbtalned by Company for financing purpases.

Exposures on foreign currency loans ace managed by the Company wide hedaing pelicy, which is reviewed periodically to ensure that the results from fluctuating
currgncy exchange rates are appropriately managed,

The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge the effects of movements in exchange rates on foreign currency denominated assets and Eabilites, The
sources of foreign exchange risk are financing transactions and loans denominated in foreign currencies, Al the transactions are denominated in US doliars. The
policy of the Company is to determine on a regular basis what portion of the foreign exchange risk on financing transactions and loans are to be hedged through
forward exchange contracts. The following analysis is based on the gross exposure as at the reporting date which could affect the staternents of prafit or loss, The
exposure summarlsed below is mitigated by some of the derivative contracts entered into by the Company as disclesed under the section on “Derlvative Financial
instruments”.

As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 33, 2016 April D1, 2015
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Financial liabilities Financial lizbilities Financial liabilities

usD 1,188,195,130 1,214,655,801 1,144,520,582
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The Company’s exposure to foreign currency arises where the Company holds monetary assets and llzbilitles denominated in 3 currency different to the functional
currency, with US dellar being the non-functional currency. The value of a financiat instrument may change as a result of changes In the interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rate, liquidity and other market changes,

The results of Company's eperatfons may be affected iargely by fluctuations In the exchange rates hetwaen the Indian Rupes against the LIS dollar. The foreign
exchange rate sensitivity is calculsted by the aggregetion of the net foreign exchange rate exposure with @ simultaneous parallel forelgn exchange rates shift in
the currencias by 5% against the functional currency of the Company.

As at March 31,2017

Effec: of 5%
strengthaing of INR on
pre tax profit /[less)

usp 59,406,033

As at March 35,2016

Effect of 5%
stranptheing of INR on
pre tax profit /(loss)

UsD 60,730,868

A 2% weakening of INR would have an equal and opposite effect on the Company’s financlal statements.

(i) Intgrest rate risk

The company is exposed to interest rate risk on short-term and long-term floating rate instruments and on refinancing of Fixed rate debt borrowing instruments
outstanding as on the year end. The company's policy is $0 maintain 2 balance of fixed and floating Interest rate borrowings and the proportion of fixed and
floating rate debt is determined by current market interest rates, The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in Indian Rupees and US dollars
with mix of fixed and floating rates of interast. The US dollar debt representing the buyers credit facility availed by the Company |s composite of fixed and foating
rates {linked to US dollar LIBOR) and the Indian Rupee debt ¢omprising of non convertible debantures term !oan and compulsory convertible debentures is
principally at fixed interest rates. These exposures are reviewed by appropriate levels of management on a monthly basis, The Company Invests cash and liquid
investments in debt mutual funds, some of which generate a tax-free return, to achieve the company's goal of maintzining figuidity, <arrying manageable risk and
achiaving satisfacbory returns.

Floating rate financial assets are largely interest bearing security deposits held by the Company, The returns from these financial assets are linked to bank rate
notified by Reserve Bank of India a5 adjusted annually. Additionally, the investrmernts portfolio is independently reviewed by CRISIL Limited, and our investrent
portfalio has been rated as “Very Good” meaning highest safety.

The exposure of the Company's financial assets & financial liabilities 25 at March 31, 2017 to interest rate risk is as follows:

Elpating Rate Fixed Rate Non Inferast Total
Financial Assets 17,960,100 - 194,029,269 211,889,369
Financial Llabillties 1,183,757,936 2,783,203,737 345,387,614 4,313,349,287

The exposure of the Company's financial assets & financial lisbilities as at March 31, 2016 to interest rate risk is as follows:

Floating Rate Fixed Rate Non Interest Tatal
Bearing,
Financial Assets 17,860,100 - 143,417,500 161,277,600
Financial Liabilities 1,211,802,084 2,687,664,381 250,338,745 4,1459,905,210

The expesure of the company’s financial assets & financial liabilities as at Aprif 01, 2015 to interest rate risk is as follows:

Floating Rata Fixed Rate Mon Interest Total
Financial Assets 9,409,016 352,884,768 352,293,784

Financial Liablfities 1,143,533,M17 3,003,855,675 409,689,671 4,647,089,263
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(iv}

{d}

Financial Instruments {Cont.)

The table below iflustrates the impact of a 0.5% to 2.0% increase in interest rates on interest on financial assets/ liabilkies (net) assuming that the changes oeour
at the reporting date and has been calculated based on risk exposure outstanding as of date. The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the
average debt autstanding during the year, This analysis alsp assumes that all other variables, in particular forelgn currency rates, remaln constant.

Year Ended March Year Endesd March Year Ended March

Increase in interest rates 31, N7 31, 2016 31, 2015
0.50% 19,534,808 15,497,832 20,736,948
1.00% 39,669,617 38,985,665 41,473,896
2.00% 79,339,233 77,951,320 B2,947,792

.5% to 2% reduction in interest rate wauld have an equat and opposite effect on the company's flnanclal statements.

nter rati

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty wil default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a
palicy of anly dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtalnlng sufficient coflateral, whare appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults, Tha company is expesed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and losns and advances.

The Company does not expect any material risk on account of non-performance by any of the Company's counterpasties as approximate 65% receivables as on
March 31,2017 is perteining Lo fellew subsidiairy. The history of trade recelvables shows a negligible provision for bad and doubtful debts therefore the company
daes not expect any materlal risk on accaunt of non perfarmance by any of the company,s counter parties,

Far short-tertn investments, counterparty limits are in place to limit the amount of credit axposure to any one counterparty. Defined limits are in place for
exposure to indivigual counterparties in case of mutual funds schemes.

The carrying value of tha financial assets ather than cash represents the maximum ¢redit exposure. The company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at March
31, 2017 1s Rs, 15,07,47,292 {March 31, 2016 Rs.11,71,55,692 and April 01, 2015 Rs. 7,71,52,745).

None of the company's cash equivalents are past due or impaired. Regarding trade and other recelvables, and other non-curréent assats, there were no Indications
as ak March 31, 2017, that defsults In payment abligations will occur.

Of the yesr end trade receivablas and other financial assets, the following balance were past due but not impaired as at March 21, 2017, March 31, 2016 and
Apri 01, 2015:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 21, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015

Past due but not impaired

Dus less thar ofe month 10,790,185 40,255,049 44,158,620
Dua between 1 to 3 Manths 10,042,059 59,878,292 32,994,125
DCise between 2 to 12 Maonths 111,252,207 17,022,351 -
Due Greater than 12 Manths 18,662,841 - -
Total 150,747,292 117,155,692 77,152,745

Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company's normal terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are
determined on & case to case basis with reference to the customer’s credit quality and prevailing market conditions. Recelvables that are classifled as ‘past due’in
the above tables are thase that have not heen settled within the terms and conditions that have been agreed with that customer.The company based on past
experience does not expect any material foss on its receivbles and hence no provision on account of ECL.

The credit quality of the Campany’s customers Is monitored on an angoing basis and assessed for impairment where indicators of such impairment exist, The
Company uses simpfified approach for impairment of financial assets, If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit lnss is used to
provide for impairment loss, However, if credik risk has increased significantiy, lifetime expected credlt loss is used, The solvency of the debtor and their ahility to
repay the reroivable is considered in assessing receivables for impairment. Where receivablas have been irmpaired, the Company actively seeks to recover the
amounts in question and enforce compliance with credit tarms

The above balances include receivables aggregating to Rs.17,022,351 as at March 31,2017 (March 31,2016 Rs.17,022,351 ,April 01,2015 Rs Nil) held back by a
customer owing to certain disputes relating to nature of services provided,in respect of which the company may pracead to initiake legal actlon.The company has
obitained an independent legal advice in suppart of its claim and does not expect any material loss on ultimate settiement,

Darlyative financial instrirmen Economlg h [

The Company has entered into forward exchange contracts to cover the exposure arising from the buyer's credit taken by the Company in US Collars. The
Company does not designate these transacion as hedges for accounting purposes, as thesa pravide an econemic hedge of a particular transaction risk or a rigk
cormpoengnt of a transaction,

Fair vajue changes on such derivative instruments are capitalised along with the foreign exchange gain/loss arising on buyer's credit of the Company based on the
exernption availed by the Company under Ind AS 101 {refer note 35). The fair value of the Company’'s derivative positions recorded under derivative financial
asgets and derivative financial liabilities are as follows:

A ey,

As on As on As on ARG,
March 31, 2017 March 312015 ol 12015 ///?;\ Fo &
Linhility Liability Liability | {g'- @ :
Non Qualifying hedges

- Forward foreign currency contracts 77,868,145 11,699,852 95,988,476
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Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a streng credit rating and healthy capltal ratios in order
te support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains
unchanned from orevious yaar.

The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans.

The funding requirements are met through 2 mixture of equity, internal fund generation, convertible and non convertible debt securities, and
gther short term and Long term borrowings. The company's policy is to use current and non current borrowings to meet anticipated Funding
requiremsnt,

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements,

Met debt are tong term and short term debts as redwced by cash and <ash equivalents . Equity comprises ail components including other
comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes the capital structure of the Company:

As at
{Rupees)

77,500,000
2,430,703,737

Short-term borrowinas (Note 16}
Lang-tarm borrowinas {Note 143

As at Asg at

{Rupees) {Rupees)

1,935,000,000
1,214,566,465

245,042,982
753,855,675

Current maturities of long term debt (Note 18) 1,458,757,936 750,060,000 3,148,430,935
Cach and cash equivalents (Nete 10} . ... (35,028,597} {18,070,680) {15,184,108}
Current investrments {Note §) - - (251,316,207}
Net debht (a) 3,531,933,077 3,881,495,785 2,879,8890,277
Total Equity (b) 760,047,702 1,213,375,688 1,203,288,010
Net debt to equity ratio (c = a/b} 5.17 3.20 3.22

Service Cancession arrangement

The Company has been engaged in coal berth mechanization and upgradation at Visakhapatham port. The project is to be carried out ¢n a
design, build, finance, operate, transfer basis and the concession agreement between Visakhapatnam Port Trust ("VPT") and the Company was
signed In June 2010. In October 2010, the Company was awarded with the concesslon after fulfilling conditicns stiputated ac a precedent to
the concession agreement. Visakhapatnam port trust has provided, in lieu of license fee an exclusive license to the Company for designing,
engineering, financing, comstructing, equipping, operating, maintaining, and replacing the project/project Facilities and services, The
concession period is 30 years from the date of the award. The upgraded capacity is 10.18 mmtpa and the Visakhapatnam port trust would be
entltled te recelve 38.10% share of the gross revenue as royalty. The Company is entitled to recover a tariff from the user(s) of the preject
facilities and services as per its Tariff Authority for Major Ports{TAMP) notification. The tariff rates are linked to the Wholesale Price Index
{WPI} and would accordingly be adjusted as specified in the concesslon agresment every year. The ownership of all infrastructure assets,
buildings, structures, berths, whars, equipment and other immovabie and movable assets constructed, instatled, located, created or provided
by the Company at the project site andfor in the port's assets pursuant fo concession agreement would be with the Company until expiry of
this concession agreement. The cost of any repair, replacement or restoration of the project facilities and services shall be borne by the
Company during {he concession period. The Company has to transfer all its rights, titles and interest in the project facilities and services free
of cost to VPT at the end of the concession period. Intangible asset pert concession rights represents consideration for construction services.
No Revenue from construction conteact of service eoncession arrangments on exchanging construction services for the part concession rights
was recognised for the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016,

{this space has been intentionaily left blank)
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3as

geographical segment. Accordingly, disclosures relating to operating segments under the Indiah Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) 108 on “Operating Segments” notifled under gection 132 read with Rule 4A of the Companies Act, 2013, are not
apellcable to the Companv for current vear,

Explanation of transition to Ind AS

Thete are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The sccounting policies sat out In
nate 3 have heen applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and the compaerative period
information,

For all pgriods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP} in India and complied with the accounting standards as
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2613 read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, to
the axtent applicable, and the presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013{Previous GAAP).

The transition to Ind AS was ¢arried out in accordance with Ind AS 10%, with April 01, 2015 being the date of transition. This
note explains the exemptions on the first-time adoption of Ind AS availed in accordance with Ind AS 101 and am explanation
of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company financial position, financial performance and
cash flows.

Exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions

Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from
retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. Set qut Delow are the applicable Ind AS 101 optiona
exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the fransition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

(a) Long Term Foreign Clirrency Monetary Items:

Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopler to continue the policy adopted for the accounting for exchange differencas arising
on translation of the long-term forelgn currency monetary Iterns recognised in the financial statements for the period
ending immedlately before the beginning of the first Ind A% financial reperting period as per previous GAAP,

The Company has opted this exemption and continued its previous GAAP palicy for accounting of exchange differences on
tong-term foreign currency monetary items recognized in the previous GAAP financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2016, Accordingly; foreign currency differences on such items attributable to the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment are adjusted against their cost and depreciated prospeciively over the remaining useful lives.

36 (a) Reconctiliation of equity between Ind-AS and Previous GAAP:

As at As at
March 31, 20186 April 0%, 2015
{Rupeas) {Rupees)

Equity as per Previous GAAP {255,434,802) {202,285,493)

- Falr valuation of derivatives (refer note i below) {65,851) {1,760,289)

~ Fair valuation and amortisation of compulsery convertible debentures 5,155,586 3,964,293
(refer note ii below)

- Fair Valuation of investment through profit and 1oss {refer note [v below) - 2,520,120

- Service concesslon arrangement (refer note v below) 570,378,744 346,565,387

- Ceferred tax charge (refer note vi below) {598,838.021) {437.896,040%

- Equity Compeonent of compulsery convertlble debentures 1,492,180,032 1,492,180,032
{refer note i below)

Equity as per Ind-AS 1,213,375,688 1,203,288,010

{hY Reconciliation of loss after tax between Ind-AS and Previous GAAP:

Year ended
March 31, 2016
{Rupees)
Net [ogs after tax as per Previous GAAP (53,149,309)
- Fair valuation of derivatives {Refer note i below) 1,694,438
- Fair valuation and amortisation of compulsory convertible 1,191,293
debentures (refer note it below)
- Emplovee Benefits {refer note iii balow) 347,586
- Reduction In Fair Valuation of investment through profit and (2,520,120)
foss (refer note iv belowl
» Amortisation of intangible assets {refer note v below) 223,812,595
- Deferred tax charge {refer note vi below) (160,941,620)
Met profit after tax as per Ind-AS 10,435,263
- Other comprehensive income {refer note iii below) {347,586)

Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS 10,087 677
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Explanation for reconcltiation of aquity between Ind-AS and erstwhile Indian GAAP / profit after tax between Ind-AS and
erstwhile Indian GAAP

vi.

The Company’s Derivatives financial instruments have been initlally recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts ara
entered inte and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period in terms of Ind AS 109, The
tesulting gain or loss has been recognised in profit or loss immediately. However, under previous GAAP, the Company applied the
requirements of Accounting Standard 11 the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates to account for principal forward entered for
hedging foreign exchange risk. At the inception of the forward, the forward premium was separated and amortised as expanse aver
the tenure of forward, The underlying instruments and the forward were restated at the closing spot exchange rate.

In terms of Ind AS 109, financial liabilities (compulsory convertible debentures) have been initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost at the end of the accounting peried based on the effective interest method. However under
pravious GAAP, debentures were recorded at their transaction value rather than fair value. Portion of debenturas which would never
be repaid has been classified as equity upon initial recognition, while under the Previous GAAP the entire instrument was treated as a
debt.

Re-measurement gains or losses: Ind AS 15 Employee Benefits requires the impact of re-measurement in net defined benefit liability
{asset) to he recognized in Other Comprehensive income (OCI). Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability {asset) comprises
actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets (excluding interest on net defined benefit asset/liability). Howevar, under Previous
GAAP this was beings recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. The Company's Investments in mutual funds have been classified as at fair value through Profit and Loss as required under Ind AS 109

- Financial Instruments. The Impact of fair value changes as on the date transition, is recognised in opening reserves and changes
thereafter are recognised in Profit and Loss account. However under Previous GAAP, investments in mutual funds were classified as
current investments and wers carried at lower of cost or fair value. o

In terms of Appendix A to Ind As -11 , Appendix A - Service Concesslon Arrangements, the Company has recognized the property,
plant and equipment received under service concession agreement as Intangible assets. Accordingly, the Company has amortized the
same based on the period of service concession agreement (against the life considerred under previous GAAP). Consequently, the
impact of change in estimate of useful lite as on the date transition, is recognised in opening reserves and changes thereafter are
recognised in Profit and Loss account.

The Impact for transition adjustments together with mandate of using baiance sheet approach {against profit and loss approach in the
previous GAAP) for computation of deferred taxes has resulted In charge to reserves, on the date of transition, with consequential
impact to the Profit and Loss account for the subseguent periods.

{c} Reconciliation of cash flows for the vear ended March 31, 2016

The transition from previous GAAP to Ind-AS did not have any material impact on the statement of cash Fows.
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1. Company Overview

Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited (the “Company”) has been set up to develop,
establish, construct, operate and maintain a project related to mechanization of coal
handling facilities and upgradation of general cargo berth at outer harbour of Visakhapatnam
Port (the “Project”} under design, build, finance, operate and transfer ("DBFQOT") basis. A
'Concession Agreement' entered inte between the Company and Board of Trustees for
Vishakhapatnam Port (the “Concessioning Authority”) granted the Company an exclusive
licence for designing, engineering, financing, constructing, equipping, operating and
maintaining the Project.

The concesslon is granted for a perfod of 30 years commencing from October 8, 2010 t.e,
date of award of concession. The Company started its commercial operations effective
March 15, 2013, The Company is entitled to recover tariff notified from time to time by the
Tariff Authority for Major Ports, from the users of project facilities and services. On the expiry
of the concession period the Company shall transfer the project assets to the concessioning
authority In accordance with the concession agreement.

The registered office of the Company is SIPCOT Industrial Complex Madurai Bye Pass Road,
T. V. Puram P.O Thoothukudi Tamil Nadu 628002 Indla. The financial statements were
approved for issuance by the Directors on April 27, 2017,

2. Basis of preparation
a) Basis of preparation and compliance with Ind AS

For all periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared
its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {GAAP)
in India and complied with the accounting standards (Previous GAAP) as notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rutes, 2014, to the extent applicable, and the presentation requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Pursuant to the notification dated February 16, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133
read with Rule 4A of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) {(Amendment) Rules, 2016, as amended, and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (collectively, *Ind AS") with effect from
Aprit 1, 2016 and the Company is required to prepare its financial statements in accordance
with Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2017, These financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2017 are the first financial statements of the company prepared in
accordance with Ind AS.

The transition of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 [First- Tlme Adoption
of Indian Accounting Standards] with date of transition as April 01, 2015, Refer note 35
and 36 for descriptions of the effect of the transition and Reconciliations required as per
Ind AS 101,

b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and
lfabilities which are measured at fair value/amortised cost, Refer note 3(d) below.

3. Significant accounting policies

The Company has applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these
financial statements.
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a) Praperty, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable caosts of
bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. I also includes
the initial estimate of the costs of dismantiing and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located, Spares are capitalized when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as separate items {major components) of property,
plant and equipment. Likewise, on initial recognition expenditure to be incurred towards
major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate component and depreciated
over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure.

Land acquired free of cost or at below market rate from the government is recognized
at falr value with corresponding credit to deferred income.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added
to its book value only if it increases the future economic benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance/life, All other expenses on
existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
axpenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged fo the statement of profit and loss
for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant
and eqguipment, and are recoghized net within other income/other expenses in
statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method (SLM) to allocate thelr cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives {determined by the management based on technical estimates) as given
below. Management’s assessment of independent technical evaluation/advice takes into
account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the assats, the
operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and maintenance
support. The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Asset Useful life (in years)
Offlce equipment 5
Vehicles 8
Furniture and fixture 10

b} Intangible assets

- Port concession rights
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such as property, plant and equipment, irrespective whether the infrastructure is existing
infrastructure of the grantor or the infrastructure is constructed or purchased by the
company as part of the service concession arrangement. Such an intangible asset is
recognised initially at cost determined as the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the construction service delivered and is capitalised when the project is
complete in all respects. Port concession rights also include certain property, plant and
equipment in accordance with Appendix A of Ind AS 11 ‘Serv:ce Concession
Arrangements’,

Port concession rights are amortised on a straight line a basis based on the lower of their
useful lives or the concession period (presently 30 years).

Any addition to the port concession rights or property, plant and equipment are measured
at fair value on recognition.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of port concession rights are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss whan the asset is de-
recognised,

- Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life. Software is amortised
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of five years or the tenure
of the respective software license, whichever is lower. The amortization period and the
amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected
useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the change is
accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Impairment of non financial asset

Impairment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating units. A
cash-generating unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group
of assets.

The company assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. The company conducts an internal review of asset values annually,
which is used as a source of information to assess for any indications of Impairment or
reversal of previously recognised impairment losses. External factors, such as changes
in expected future prices, costs and other market factors are also maonitored to assess
for indications of impairment or reversal of previously recognised impairment losses.

If any such indication exists then an impairment review is undertaken and the
recoverable amount is calculated, as the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
the asset's value in use.

Fair value less costs of disposal is the price that would be recelved to sell the asset in
an orderly transaction between market participants and does not reflect the effects of
factors that may be specific to the entity and nok applicable to entities in general. These
cash flows are discounted at an appropriate post tax discount rate to arrive at the net
prasent value.

,»“ Value in use is determined as the present value of the estimated future cash flows
%} expected to arise from the continued use of the asset in its present form and its eventual
-»j disposal. The cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
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current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Value in use is
determined by applying assumptions specific to the Company's continued use and
cannot take into account future development, These assumptions are different to those
used in calculating fair value and consequently the value in use calculation is likely to
give a different result to a fair value calculation.

The carrying amount of the CGU is determined on a basis consistent with the way the
recoverable amount of the CGU is determined,

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment |oss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Any reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is limited to the extent that
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined if no impalrment loss had previously heen recognised.

d) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that glves rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial Assets - Recognition

All financial assets are recognised initfally at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Fer purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in below
categories:

s Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions

are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
cellecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initlal measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The FIR amortisation Is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The [osses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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¢ Debt instruments at fair wvalue through other Comprehensive
income(FVOCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are
met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

b} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments Included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes Interest income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and
loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest
earned whilst holding fair value through other comprehensive income debt instrument
Is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

* Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amartized cost or as FVYOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in profit or loss.

s Equity Instruments

All equity Investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as
at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair
value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification s made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of
investment. Howeaver, the Company may fransfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. For equity instruments which are classified as FVTPL, all subsequent fair value
changes are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(ii)} Financial Assets - Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of owinership of the financia! asset are transfarred.

{iii} Impairment of financiai assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss {(ECL) model

for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets:

» Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.,
loans, debt securities, deposits and trade receivables
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e Financial assets that are debt Instruments and are measured as at FVOCI e.g.
derivatives designated as hedges

+ Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

At each reporting date, for recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and
risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. I credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-meonth ECL is usad to provide for impainment loss, However, if credit
risk has Increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising |mpairment
foss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument., The 12-month £CL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash fiows that the entity expects to receive,
discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the year is recognized as income/
expense in profit or loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECLis presented as an allowance,
i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the halance sheet.
The Company does not reduce Impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

b} Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected
at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its vatue. Rather,
ECL amount is presented as *accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis,

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impairad on
purchase/origination.

(iv) Financial liabilities - Recognition and Subseqguent measurement
—— Financlal liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as finandial liabilitles fair value

through profit or loss, or as loans and borrowings, pavables, or as derivatives
. designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Ei; yisakhapalnad é All financial Habilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans,
\x_) % borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings
including buyer’s credit and derlvative finandial instruments.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and Borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and {osses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are dereccgnised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premlum on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is inclucled as finance costs in profit or loss.

« Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss- -

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial lizbilities are classified as held for trading If they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated
ernbedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabllities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities deslgnated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss
are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind
AS 109 are satisfied. For liahilkies deslgnated as FVTPL, fair value ogains/losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCIL. These gains/ loss are
not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such ifabllity are
recognisad in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and ioss.

(v) Financial liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability I1s discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financiai liahility is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised In profit or loss.

{vi) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residua! interest in the assets of
any entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs, if any,

(vii) Offsetting of financial instruments

, Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
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amounts and there is an intention to setile on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabllities simultaneously.

(viii) Income/loss recognition
« Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrurnent (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but
does not consider the expected credit iosses,

e} Leases
Determining whether an arrangement cantains lease
At inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is
or contains a lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
-arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in
an arrangement.

Arrangements containing a lease have been evaluated as on the date of transition i.e.
April 01, 2015 in accordance with Ind-AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standard. Lease arrangements inctuding both land and building have been separately
evalyated for finance or operating lease at the date of transition to Ind AS basis the
facts and circumstances existing as at that date.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains lease, the Company
separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into those
for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If
the Company concludes for a finance lease that is impracticable to separate the
payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to
the fair value of the underlying asset; subsequently the liability is reduced as payments
are made and-an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate,

Campany as a lessee

A iease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease, A
lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to
the Company is dassifled as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apporticned between finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability so as to achleve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability, Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss, unfess they are directly attributable tc qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general palicy on the borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased assetl is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasenable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease
e term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated usefu! life of the asset

3580 g, and the lease term.
8% Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and

R

o } loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Unless the payments are structured to

‘iig':; yisakhaptthe®y Toincrease in line with general inflation te compensate for the lessor's expected
‘=ag§f>_(_\b '*ﬁ:,f; inflationary cost increase”.
'\"U@Q' - }'g,:lf/.‘
\k‘:'{%__f_,. o
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Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from
operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred In negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned. Leases are classified as finance leases when substantiaily all
of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts
due from lessees under finance feases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s
net investment in the [eases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding In
respect of the lease,

f) Inventories

Inventories comprise of stores and spares which are valued at the lower of cost
determined on first in first out basls (FIFO) and the net realisable value after providing
for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost includes all
charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale, including octroi and other levies,
transit insurance and receiving charges,

Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

g) Government Grant

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that (i) the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and
(ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis in the consolidated statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to
match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released
to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset and
presented within other income,

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant
are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected
useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

When loans or simitar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions,
with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this
favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially
recognised and measured at falr value and the government grant is measured as the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The
loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy Applicable to financial
liabilities,

h) Taxation

i

f@ﬁgﬂ AN, Tax expense reprasents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

(z’/ ’\ 63;'. 3
Torh
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. Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax
. rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
= I and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on 2all temporary differences
at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to
the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,
Tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss
either in Cther Comprehensive Income or Equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is
adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

i) Employee benefits

{i} Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services
are classified as short-term employee benefits, These benefits include salaries and
wages, performance incentives and compensated absences which are expected to occur
in next twelve months. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to
be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related
service Is rendered by employees.

(ii) Post-Emplayment benefits
o Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, the Company contributes
to a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump
sum payment to employees who have completed at least 5 years of service; at
retirement, disability or termination of employment being an amount equal to 15
day's salary (based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary) for every
cornpleted year of service.

Based on actuarial valuations conducted as at year end, a provision is recognized in
full for the benefit obligation over and above the funds heid in the Gratuity Plan.

In respect of defined benefit schemes, the assets are held in separately
administered funds. The cost of providing benefits under the plans is determined by
actuarial valuation separately each year using the projected unit credit method by
Independent qualified actuary as at the year end.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included In net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit fo retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit
and Loss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

= Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses
on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
- Net interest expense or income




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

= Provident Fund

The Company offers retirement benefits to its employess, under provident fund
scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company and employees
contribute at predetermined rates to the fund administered and managed by
Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further obligation under this
scheme beyond its contribution towards provident fund which is recognized as an
expense in the Statement of profit and loss in the period it is Incurred.

s Superannuation

Certain employeas of the Company, eligible for the Superannuation plan. The
Company make periodic contribution to superannuation plan of Life Insurance
Corporation of India. The Company has no further obligations to the Plan beyond its
monthly contributions. The contribution is recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

-{ili}  Other Long-Term Employee benefits -
« Compensated absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating
and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated
absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary
at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional
amount expected teo be paid/availed as a result of the unused entitlernent that has
accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense on  non-accumnulating
compensated absences is recognized in the peried in which the absences occur.

j)} Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an cutflow of resources,
that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation, though the
amount or timing is uncertain.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific tc the liability. Unwinding of the
discount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate,

A contingent liability 1s a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one ¢r more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that
is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.
The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but disclosas its existence in the
financial statements.
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k) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company. Revenue is recognized anly when It can be reliably measured and
it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. Revenue on transactions of rendering
services is recognized to the extent the services are actually rendered. Revenue from
carge handling and storage is recognized in the period to which it relates based on the
service performed. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of discount, volume rebates, outgoing sales tax and other indirect taxes’,

Revenues and costs relating to construction contract of service concession
arrangements are recognized over the period of each arrangement only to the extent
of costs incurred that are probable of recovery. Revenues and costs relating to cperating
phase of the port contract are measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the services provided,

Interest income is accounted on accrual basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive it is established.

13 Accounting for foreign currency transactions

Items Included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (*the
functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR),
which is the Company's functional currency.

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are transfated into the
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated into the functional
currency at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
{iabilities denominated in other currendies and measured at historical cost or fair value
are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such values were
determined.

All exchange differences are included in profit or loss except any exchange differences
on monetary items designated as an effective hedging instrument of the currency risk
of the designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other
comprehensive income.

The Company has applied paragraph 468A of AS 11 under Previous GAAP. Ind AS 101
gives an option, which has been exercised by the Company, whereby a first time adopter
can continue its Previous GAAP policy for accounting for exchange differences arising
from translation of long-term foreign currency monetary items recognized in the
Previous GAAP financial statements for the pericd ending immediately before the
beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period. Hence, foreign exchange
gainfloss on long-term foreign currency monetary items recognized in the Previous
GAAP up to March 31, 2016 is adjusted to cost of Property, Plant and Equipment. Such
exchange differences arising on translation/seftlement of long-term foreign currency
. monetary [tems and pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset are amortized
";l-'z;};_ over the remaining useful lives of the assets.

From accounting periods commencing on or after April 01, 2016, exchange differences
arising on translation/settlement of long-termn foreign currency monetary items,
acquired post April 01, 2016, pertaining to the acquisition of a depreclable asset are
charged to the statement of profit and loss.

m) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS™) data for its equity
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity
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shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

n} Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current /
hon-current classification,
An asset is classified as current when it safisfies any of the following criteria:
« It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
Company’s normal operating cycle,
+ Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
o It is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or
It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used
to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

1t is held primarily for the purpose of heing traded;

It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; cor

The Company does not have an unconditicnal right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that
could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settiement by the Issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification,

* & & =

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.

o) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) and

exchange differences arising from forelgn currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost,

Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisttion, construction or production of a
qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and added to the project
cost during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use i.e. when they are capahle of commercial production. Where funds are
borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual
borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are avallable out of money borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments
is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance
a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a
weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general barrowings of the Company
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit
and loss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying
assets is interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exacily discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter pericd, where appropriate, to
the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company astimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms
of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar

s, OPHONS),
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p) Seament reporting
Identification of segments:

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according
to the nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The
analysis of geographical segments is hased on the geographical iocation of the
customers,

Seqgment accounting policies:

The Company prepares its segrent information in conformity with the accounting
policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statemnents of the Company
as a whole, :

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money
market deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of cutstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash managemeni.

r) Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS which requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, incorme,
expenses and disclosures of confingent assets and liabilities at the date of these
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years
presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions
and conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and
future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the folowing accounting
policies and/or notes:

Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies
The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Information about estimates and judgements
made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are as follows:

Estimates

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful lIife of property, plant and equipment at the end of

each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation
expense in future periods.

Judgements
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ii) Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation,
taxation and other daims against the Company. Where it is management’s
assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably quantified or is uncertain, the claims
are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome is
remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the
financial statements.

While considering the possible, prebable and remote analysis of taxation, legal and
other claims, there is always a certain degree of judgement involved pertaining to the
application of the legistation which in certain cases is supported by views of tax
experts and/or earlier precedents in similar matters. Although there can be no
assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company does
not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company’s financial
position or profitability,

s) Standards issued but not effective

In March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) {(Amendments) Rules, 2017, notifying amendments to Ind AS
7, 'Statement of cash flows’ and Ind AS 102, ‘Share-based payment’. The amendments
are applicable to the Company from April 01, 2017,

s Amendment to Ind AS 7:

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening
and dlosing balances in the balance sheet for lizhilities arising from financing
activities, to meet the disclosure reguirement.

+ Amendment fo Ind AS 102:

The amendment to Ind AS 102 provides specific guidance to measurement of
cash-settled awards, modification of cash-settled awards and awards that
include a net settlement feature in respect of withholding taxes. It clarifies that
the fair value of cash-settled awards is determined on a basis consistent with
that used for equity-settled awards. Market-based performance conditions and
nen-vesting conditions are reflected in the ‘fair values’, but non-market
performance conditions and service vesting conditions are reflected in the
estimate of the number of awards expected to vest. Also, the amendment
clarifies that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified with the result that it becomes an equity-settled share
based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as such from the
date of the modification. Further, the amendment requires the award that
include a net settlement feature in respect of withholding taxes to be treated as
equity-settled in its entirety. The cash payment to the tax authority is treated
as if it was part of an equity settlement.

The Company will adopt these amendments from their applicability date.




